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In case of any inconsistency between the English version and the
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names of the entities or enterprises established in the PRC
mentioned in this annual report and their English translations,
the Chinese names shall prevail. The English translations of the
Chinese names of such PRC entities or enterprises are provided
for identification purposes only.
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFERA - KX ER BN - THFHEE

following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

“Articles”

(4R A

“Board”

-

“China” or “PRC”

[ B )

“Company”

RNYNCIE

“COVID-19”
[COVID-19]

“Directors”

[E=%]

»oo

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”,
“Us” of “our”

NS REAE:A SN

HHK$!1
[7&7t]

“HKICPA”
(BRGNS

“Hong Kong”
(&

KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEB Tl

the articles of association of the Company approved and adopted on 16
December 2019, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

RRATER20195F12 A 16 AL REMB B M ERRAA] (P RHEET
8 78 S A B A 5 S A& 20

the board of Directors

)

the People’s Republic of China and, except where the context requires
and only for the purpose of this annual report, references to China do
not include Taiwan, the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China or the Macao Special Administrative Region of
the People’s Republic of China

PEARANE  WXEXAEBERERAFHRN S - AP EORM
TREAE  PEARKNMBEERTERR K EARLMEDRPIEF
AT R

Kwung’s Holdings Limited
% R AR A A

The novel coronavirus disease 2019
2019 F A KR S

the directors of the Company

ARBE=R

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context so requires in
respect of the period before the Company became the holding company
of the present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company and
the business carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
predecessors

ARBIREMBAR X ESBEAE  RARRKASEIRE B
RAIMZERARZ A ER - RARBREHER RS (RIFRME) K
GIE/NCIFN =S 0E

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEBHET

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
RN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EEBRRIITERE
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“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Rules”

[ e A

“Ningbo Fenyuan”

[B% 254 ]

“Ningbo Kwung'’s”

E=93) udl

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“RMB”
TARE]

“SFO”

[5& 75 R BB 1B

“Share(s)”
[B&1n ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 32 P

“Usb”
Sl
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listing of Shares on Main Boa
Pt PR B S P AR £ T

the Rules Governing the Listi

B AT 7 AR A

Ningbo Fenyuan Aromathera
73 A]), a company establishe
2019, and an indirect wholly-
ERFEEERMBRAA
NE - WAEKABREE S

Ningbo Kwung’s Wisdom Ar
B MR AR, a company es
January 1999, and an indirec
ERBEHERIZRTAD
Al WRAARNEES

prospectus of the Company d
ARFHEHR2019F12 A

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful cu

TEDEEEBARE

Securities and Futures Ordina
as amended, supplemented o
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(P4

ordinary shares of HK$0.001
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holder(s) of the Share(s)
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The Stock Exchange of Hong
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United States dollars, the law
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Mr. JIN Jianxin (Chairman)
Mr. TIAN Dong

Non-executive director

Mr. SHAQ Patrick

Independent non-executive director
Mr. LAl Chun Yu
Ms. XU Qiong (appointed on 19 April 2022)

Mr. ZHOU Kai
Mr. YANG Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAU Chung Wai (FCPA (Practising))

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. LAl Chun Yu (Chairman)

Mr. SHAO Patrick
Mr. ZHOU Kai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHOU Kai (Chairman)

Mr. JIN Jianxin
Mr. LAl Chun Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. XU Qiong (Chairlady) (appointed on 19 April 2022)

Mr. JIN Jianxin
Mr. LAl Chun Yu
Mr. YANG Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

(for the purpose of the Listing Rules)
Mr. LAU Chung Wai
Mr. TIAN Dong

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REGISTERED OFFICE

89 Nexus Way
Camana Bay
Grand Cayman
KY1-9009
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1102, 11th Floor

Brill Plaza, No. 84 To Kwa Wan Road
To Kwa Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

827 Qixiang Road
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited
89 Nexus Way

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman

KY1-9009

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre
No. 16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1925

WEBSITE

http://Awww.kwungs.com
(information on the website does not form part of this annual report)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
ANRIER (®)
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Dear Shareholders,

Thank you for your support over the past year and we have achieved
a healthy growth on our business after overcoming different obstacles
on both overseas and domestic markets. We have also made some
breakthroughs on the research, development, production and sales of
fragrance products, which is believed to be a key element to maintain
our sustainable growth in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, we have continued to focus
on the development of our main business and maintained a stable level
of production and operation. Our total revenue was approximately
RMB718.7 million, achieving a year-on-year growth of approximately
13.8%, and our profit was approximately RMB52.6 million, achieving a
year-on-year growth of approximately 7.3%. Our investment in brand
building and informatisation of approximately RMB8 million narrowed
our increase in the profit.

Our overseas sales team pays attention to the global economic
situation, puts efforts on developing distribution channels and enhances
customer service through resolving customers’ problems, strengthening
our reputation. We are upgrading our European markets, and exploring
the United States market.

For domestic market, we continue optimising our brand. We actively
adjust the retail shop arrangements for our “Fumare” products
according to the market trend, and we expand the market for our
“Birdtalk” products with the help of Douyin e-commerce channel.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEHREF (#)

Our supply chain team continues to strengthen in the field of intelligent
manufacturing. The Anhui industrial park project with the fragrance
product industry as the core started around the end of 2022 and it is
expected that our annual production capacity for artisan candles and
fragrance products will increase from 8,000 tons to 14,500 tons by
early 2024. The expansion of production capacity will contribute to our
rapid development.

Our research and development team has been developing steadily
under the motto of “technical innovation is the highest goal of market
development”. In the upgrading of traditional products and the
development of intelligent equipment, our investment cost has reached
a record high, and the market competitiveness has been significantly
improved.

“Striving together” is our corporate spirit, and “creating value for users,
sharing achievements with employees, achieving financial performance
for Shareholders, and creating a better future with society” is our
corporate objective. In the upcoming year, we will fully strengthen
our products, our brands and our organisational power, and will also
further optimise our market strategy, execution of informatisation,
financial management and talent training, and make great strides on
the road of our healthy development.

Thank you for your long-term trust and company. Everything becomes
beautiful with you all the way.

JIN Jianxin
Chairman of the Board

31 March 2023
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The Group provides solutions to customers on design and manufacture
of home decoration products and home fragrance products, comprising
core products such as home fragrance candles and home fragrance
diffusers, which are considered to be widely used in people’s daily life.

The global economy has been recovering from the COVID-19
pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2022, including release
of lockdown and travel restriction, and resumption of the logistics
capacity. However, the global economy has been badly hit by the
COVID-19 pandemic over the past two years and it is still in an early
stage of the economic recovery.

The Group has taken some measures during the year ended 31
December 2022 to further improve on the production management,
product development and sales channel, which are considered to be
one of the reasons for achieving a steady growth on the revenue in
spite of the relatively sluggish economy.

The Group has set up a production plant in Yinzhou District, Ningbo
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (the “New Yinzhou Plant”), which
has started operating since 2020. The New Yinzhou Plant has been
equipped with more advanced and automated production equipment
and better logistics solution. The Group further enhanced its production
efficiency by implementing “Informatisation” on the supply chain and
production cycle, which has been recognised by the Group’s customer
as the production time can be further shortened. There was a spending
of approximately RMB1.9 million for the “Informatisation” project,
which is considered as an investment for a long term development,
bringing a better reward to the Group in long run.

In addition, the Group continues putting a lot of effort in research
and product development. There is a collaboration with Ningbo Tech
University ()T K 2 % ) 32 T 2 F1) to explore new technology on
the Group’s products, such as application of new nano-materials on
home fragrance products and development of new portable fragrance
diffusers, new car-used fragrance diffusers and new lighting products
with fragrance diffusing function. The research on new technology and
development of new products are considered by the Group’s customers
as essential elements for long term business collaboration with the
Group. Approximately RMB26.1 million has been spent on the research
and development function during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Although it has brought to the Group a short-term impact on the
financial performance, management of the Group has confidence
that the potentials from these research and development work will be
released in the foreseeable future, and reflected in the growth on the
Group’s sales amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Moreover, in addition to the online showroom that the Group has
launched in response to the lockdown and travel restriction back
in 2020, the Group’s sales teams has resumed the traditional sales
channels, including arranging client visits to the Group’s New Yinzhou
Plant and visiting client’s headquarters overseas. The Group has put
efforts in penetrating into existing markets and clients during the
economy recovery and achieved a steady growth on revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue mainly arises from the export sales of the Group’s
candle products, home fragrance products and home accessories during
the year. It increased by approximately RMB87.3 million or 13.8%
to approximately RMB718.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 from approximately RMB631.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Group secured more purchase orders from the
existing customers, resulting in revenue growth for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately RMB13.3 million
or 11.0% to approximately RMB134.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 from approximately RMB121.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Such increase in gross profit was mainly
because of the increase in the Group’s revenue during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Group’s gross profit margin maintained at similar level for the
current year, changing from approximately 19.2% for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately 18.7% for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly comprises income from government
grants in the PRC and also the rental income earned from leasing the
Group’s properties. The decrease in other income during the current
year was mainly attributed to less grants from the local government
in the PRC for the current year. There were grants from the local
government in the PRC in relation to the Listing for the prior year.

R R ARAE
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The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprise payroll costs
for the management team and supporting staff, cost of raw materials
consumed for research and development purpose, depreciation
expenses in relation to the Group’s office buildings and office
equipment and cost of utilities for office use.

There was an increase in administrative expenses of approximately
RMB10.4 million or approximately 18.6% to approximately RMB66.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately
RMB55.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to increased raw materials
consumed for research and development and increased administrative
staff to support the business growth and also salary adjustment for
existing staff in response to their increased duties and performance.

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses mainly comprise advertising
and promotion expenses, payroll costs for staff in sales departments,
sample inspection and express fees, commissions to agents and
operating costs for the Group’s retail stores.

There was an increase in selling and marketing expenses of
approximately RMB4.7 million or 23.9% to approximately RMB24.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately
RMB19.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Increase in the
Group’s selling and marketing expenses for the current year was mainly
due to increased advertising and promotion costs spent for brand
building in domestic market, from approximately RMB4.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB10.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group’s other gain, net mainly comprises foreign exchange
differences, net fair value changes on foreign exchange forward
contracts, net fair value changes on funds invested, net fair value
change on foreign exchange swaps and also donation expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other gains, net (continued)

There was an increase in other net gain of approximately RMB5.8
million to approximately RMB&8.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 from approximately RMB2.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The increase in net other gain for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly due to the net fair value gain on the funds invested by the
Group. The Group invested its idle cash to certain funds with low risk
profile in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Net finance costs

The Group’s net finance costs mainly represent the interest income
earned from financial institutions and the finance costs incurred for
short-term bank borrowings.

There was an increase in net finance costs of approximately RMB1.3
million or 661% to approximately RMB1.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 from approximately RMB0.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Group had higher balances on both bank deposits and bank
borrowing amounts during the year. The Group is offered by the
local banks in the PRC for some short-term banking facilities and at
the same time some fixed deposit arrangements. The Group placed
a fixed deposit of RMB105 million using the fund from the short-
term borrowings from the local banks in the PRC. The fixed deposit is
transferrable to third parties.

There is an arbitrage effect with such arrangement bringing net interest
income to the Group. The interest income arising from the fixed
deposits would only be paid to the Group upon maturity of the fixed
deposits and is not recognised in the income statement during the year
ended 31 December 2022, as the Group has intention not to hold until
maturity but transfer to third parties for better liquidity to the Group’s
capital structure.

R R ARAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWRD @

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
companies comprising our Group domicile or operate.

(i)

(ii)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act
of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman
Islands income tax.

BVI income tax

Under the current laws of the BVI, entities incorporated in BVI are
not subject to tax on their income or capital gains.

(iii) Hong Kong income tax

(iv)

14

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Hong Kong has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2022, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof. The statutory tax rate was 16.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
the PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The
statutory tax rate was 25% for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

(iv) PRC corporate income tax (Continued)

Ningbo Kwung’s was qualified as a “High and New Technology
Enterprise” since 2008 and renewed its qualification in December
2020, and it is subject to a reduced preferential corporate income
rate of 15% from 2020 to December 2023 according to the tax
preference applicable to the High and New Technology Enterprise.

In addition, according to the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was
effective from 2018, during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2023 enterprises engaging in research and development
activities are entitled to claim 200% of their research and
development expenses incurred as tax deductible expenses when
determining their assessable profits for that year. Management of
the Group assesses that the Group is eligible to such claim for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. In addition, pursuant
to the Announcement on Increasing the Pre-tax Deductions in
Support of Technological Innovation (Announcement [2022]
No. 28) issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation
Administration and the Ministry of Science and Technology of the
PRC* (R EIBF B AR - iS4 TD - RIREC R DA S #5 BHR B3
FRATHER 71 R A %), during the period from 1 October 2022 to
31 December 2022, the cost of newly purchased equipment can
be fully deducted against taxable profit in 2022, and entitled to
additional pre-tax deduction at 100%.

There was a decrease in the Group’s income tax expense by
approximately RMB3.3 million or 47.2% to approximately RMB3.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately
RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease
was mainly due to the full tax deduction for the newly purchased
equipment in the PRC, and also the utilisation of tax losses for a
subsidiary in the PRC, for which no deferred tax assets were recognised
in the prior year.

The overall effective tax rate of the Group dropped from approximately
12.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 6.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The reasons for the decrease
in the effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was the
same as the reason disclosed above for the decrease in the income tax
expense.

R R ARAE
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The Group’s property plant and equipment mainly comprise net
carrying amounts of the office building, production plants, machinery
and the corresponding capitalised renovation costs. There was an
increase in the net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment by approximately RMB6.8 million during the year ended
31 December 2022 which was mainly due to the cost incurred for
machinery equipments of the new production line.

The Group’s right-of-use assets comprise net carrying amounts of the
prepaid land use rights for the lands used by the Group’s office building
and production plants, and also the net carrying amounts of the
properties leased by the Group.

Increase in balance during the year ended 31 December 2022 was
mainly due to the costs of approximately RMB30.1 million paid for the
acquisition of a piece of land in Sanshan Economic Development Zone*
(= 1L #E BRI 2% ), Wuhu City, Anhui Province, the PRC, to be used for
setting up of new production facilities.

The Group’s investment properties represent the buildings located in
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, owned by the Group. Such
buildings are leased to independent third parties as warehouses.

The Group’s inventory balance comprises raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods for the Group’s candle products, home
fragrance products and home accessories products. There was a
decrease in the Group’s inventory balance by approximately RMB23.6
million or 26.3% to approximately RMB66.1 million as at 31 December
2022 from approximately RMB89.6 million as at 31 December 2021
which was mainly due to the low unit price of raw materials such as
candlestick accessories purchased according to the order demand at the
end of the year. In addition, there was a decreased balance of finished
goods as at 31 December 2022 as compared to 31 December 2021
because there were more finished goods pending to be delivered to the
customers due to the impact of COVID-19 on the freight arrangement
across countries around the end of 2021 and there was no such issue
this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables balance as at 31 December 2022 mainly represented
outstanding balance from the Group’s overseas customers. There was a
decrease in trade receivables balance before allowance for impairment
of approximately RMB26.8 million or 17.5% from approximately
RMB150.9 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB124.1
million as at 31 December 2022. The Group experienced increased sales
in the second half of 2021 when the product demand started resuming
from the impact of COVID-19, causing an increase in the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and the trade receivables resumed
to a normal level for the current year.

Most of the Group’s trade receivables balance were aged within 180
days. The Group experienced limited bad debt issues over the years and
a small provision for impairment of trade receivables of approximately
RMB3.5 million was recorded as at 31 December 2022, which is
calculated based on the expected credit loss percentage for the aged
trade receivables balance.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

The balance of prepayments, deposits and other receivables comprises
mainly advances to suppliers, recoverable value-added tax and deposits
paid.

There was a decrease in the balance of approximately RMB11.1 million
or 34.2% to approximately RMB21.4 million as at 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB32.5 million as at 31 December 2021. The
decrease in balance was mainly due to a decrease in recoverable value-
added tax as at 31 December 2022 as a result of the decrease in
inventory balance.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group subscribes certain private funds in the PRC using idle cash
totalling RMB100 million during the current year. In addition, the
Group arranges foreign currency forward contracts with commercial
banks in the PRC in respect of the exchange rate of RMB against USD
in response to the Group’s foreign exchange exposure arising from the
sales to the Group’s overseas customers, which is denominated in USD.

The Group recorded unrealised liabilities arising from the foreign
currency forward contracts as at 31 December 2022 as a result of a
depreciation of RMB against USD throughout the current year.
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The balance of cash and cash in bank as at 31 December 2022
comprised cash deposited into financial institutions in the PRC and
Hong Kong, and also restricted cash maintained in financial institutions
in the PRC.

There was a decrease in the balance of approximately RMB56.5 million
or 28.3% to approximately RMB143.2 million as at 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB199.7 million as at 31 December 2021. Such
decrease in balance was mainly due to the utilisation of some idle cash
for subscription of certain funds in the PRC during the current year.

The balance of trade and other payables comprises mainly payables
to suppliers of raw materials and payroll payables to the Group’s
employees.

There was an increase in the balance of approximately RMB6.1 million
or 7.9% to approximately RMB84.2 million as at 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB78.1 million as at 31 December 2021. The
change in balance was mainly due to increased purchase of raw
materials to meet the demand of rising sales orders.

The balance of lease liabilities represents the present value of future
lease payments in respect of shopping mall counters leased by the
Group.

There is a decrease in the balance of approximately RMB2.3 million
to approximately RMBO0.2 million as at 31 December 2022 from
approximately RMB2.5 million as at 31 December 2021 as a result of
settlement to the lessors during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN E)

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

The Group has achieved a stable growth in business over the past
few years with the leased production facilities and outsourced
subcontracting services. There has been a business plan to set up
another production base in the PRC to support the business growth as
mentioned in the annual report last year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, management of the Group
has put a lot of effort to explore a good location in the PRC and finally
succeeded in acquiring a piece of land located at Sanshan Economic
Development Zone* (= L &% & ] ¥ [& ), Wuhu City, Anhui Province,
the PRC with a total site area of approximately 96,000 sg. m. (the
“Wuhu Site”). It comes to another milestone of the Group to set up a
large scale of production facilities, which can bring a better quality to
the Group’s products with less reliance on outsourced subcontracting
work, especially for non-standard products. In addition, the Group will
be equipped with more advanced machineries in the new production
facilities and will achieve a more efficient production cycle. It is also the
plan of the Group to expand its design and production on fragrance
products with such new production facilities.

The Group has entered into a construction agreement with a contractor
Zhejiang Lianshangyuan Construction Co., Ltd.* (3 JT B 15 R 2 5%
BBR A F]) on 19 January 2023 in respect of the construction of the
production facilities in the Wuhu Site, including warehouses, workshop
buildings and staff quarters, at a consideration of RMB150,000,000
and subject to adjustment to be agreed by both parties from time to
time. The construction of the production facilities in the Wuhu Site is
estimated to be completed in mid 2024. For details in relation to the
construction agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 19 January 2023 and the circular dated 3 March 2023.

FUTURE PLANS

In addition to setting up the Group’s self-owned production facilities
in the Wuhu Site as mentioned above, the Group is also exploring the
possibilities of setting up new production facilities overseas in response
to some overseas market demands.

Having established a long term plan on the production capacity, the
Group is also actively expanding its customer base, including customers
from new geographical markets like the United States. The Group has
established a healthy and solid customer base with existing customers
and it is a good time for the Group to go further into new market and
secure new customers for the Group’s sustainable growth.
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Mr. JIN Jianxin (£ #5%£4), aged 57, is our executive Director,
chairman and the chief executive officer. He is our founder and joined
our Group in January 1999. He is responsible for executing board
resolutions, formulating business development plans and strategies and
overseeing the daily business operation of the Group. He is the uncle
of Mr. Tian Dong and brother-in-law of Mr. RU Liming, a substantial
Shareholder and former executive Director.

Mr. Jin has over 20 years of experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and selling of candle products. He has been the chairman of the board
of Ningbo Kwung’s since its establishment and is primarily responsible
for the overall management of Ningbo Kwung’s. Since 2016, he has
been appointed as the vice chairman of China Daily-use Chemical
Industry Association (Candle Division) (FE BBt THeEE S ).

Mr. Jin graduated from Beijing International Studies University (1t 525
~4HMNE B EEBR) with a degree of bachelor of economics in July 1989.
He was awarded with the qualification of Senior Economist by the
Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social Security Department (7
SIE ANEBRMEERERE) in February 2011. In January 2014, he
was named as Culture New Zhejiang Entrepreneur (3XAL#734174) by the
Selection Committee of the Culture New Zhejiang Entrepreneur (31t

A ATEERE).
Mr. Jin is also a director of Kwung’s Investments Limited, Kwung’s

Wisdom (Hong Kong) Co., Limited, Ningbo Kwung’s and Neobee
Australia Pty Ltd, all of which being subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENSNAEEE (&)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. TIAN Dong (HH3R5E4), aged 43, is our executive Director. He is
responsible for overseeing the financial and capital operation of the
Group. He is the nephew of Mr. Jin.

Mr. Tian has been working in our Group for more than 10 years. He
joined our Group in 2004 as an office administrator of the performance
appraisal office of Ningbo Kwung’s and was promoted to supervisor of
the information system department of Ningbo Kwung’s in November
2008. Since November 2011, he has been working as the secretary
of the board of Ningbo Kwung’s and has been responsible for the
corporate governance, organisation of the directors’ and shareholders’
meetings of Ningbo Kwung’s.

Mr. Tian graduated from Zhejiang University of Science and Technology
OYT B2 PR ) with a degree of computer science and technology (5t
H#ALEEFMT) in June 2002. He also obtained a master degree of
science in distributed systems and networks from University of Kent in
November 2004.

Mr. Tian is also a director of Ningbo Fenyuan and Ningbo Wanwei
Pulian Technology Co., Ltd. ()& & # & B Bt B R A &), both of
which being wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. SHAO Patrick (B8 %4 ), aged 57, is our non-executive Director.
Mr. Shao joined our Group as a director of Ningbo Kwung’s in June
2015. He is primarily responsible for formulating the business
development plans and strategies of our Group.

Mr. Shao has extensive experience in business strategies formulation,
business development and operation. From June 2005 to July 2015, he
was the vice general manager of Guangzhou Shi Xinli Metal Limited (&
T 12 BAR AR, a brake pad friction materials manufacturing
company and was primarily responsible for the development of new
products and formulation of business strategies of the company.
Currently, he is the vice general manager and director of human
resources department of Zhangjiagang Xinli Metal Limited (3R &
¥ h&BAR QA a PRC company engaging in the manufacturing
of brake pad friction materials. He is responsible for formulating the
business strategies and overseeing the daily operation of the company.

Mr. Shao graduated from Peking University (1t 5 A 2) with a degree
of bachelor of Chinese Literature in July 1989.

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (BIRF 5% 4), aged 46, is our independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 16 December 2019. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Lai has more than 19 years of experience in the area of accounting,
auditing and financial management. From July 2000 to December
2003, he worked as an accountant in Ernst & Young. From August
2005 to June 2007, he worked as a financial controller of Qin Jia Yuan
Media Services Company Limited (presently known as SMI Culture &
Travel Group Holdings Limited), a media services provider listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2366), and was primarily responsible
for assisting in the budget preparation, treasury, internal control and
investor relation matter of the company. From May 2009 to June 2017,
he worked as a company secretary of Amber Energy Limited (presently
known as Puxing Energy Limited), a clean energy provider in the PRC
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 90), and was responsible
for assisting in the listing and corporate governance matters of the
company. Since February 2018, he has become the director of MCGI
Consultancy Limited, a business consultancy firm in Hong Kong, and
has been responsible for the strategic planning, business development
and operation of the company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENSNAEEE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Lai obtained a degree of bachelor of business (accountancy)
from Queensland University of Technology in August 1999. Mr. Lai
has become a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia since
November 2002. He was admitted as a certified public accountant of
HKICPA in January 2004 and has become a fellow member of HKICPA
since 2010.

Mr. Lai has held directorship in the following listed company in Hong
Kong in the last three years:

Principal business

Period Name of entity activities
il BEEEHE TEXBED
October 2019 - Present  Tailam Tech Construction Holdings Manufacture and sale
Limited (stock code: 6193) of concrete piles an
commercial concret
in the PRC
2019F 10 AZRE EMMBRERERAF RPEEHRRLE
(RHRHR - 6193) REmEET
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENENREEE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Ms. XU Qiong (## % 1), aged 55, is our independent non-executive
Director. She was appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 19 April 2022. She is responsible for providing independent advice
to our Board.

Ms. Xu has over 10 years of experience in financial and local tax
advisory service in the PRC. Ms. Xu is currently the major shareholder
and the chairlady of the board of directors of Ningbo Huihao Tax Agent
Company Limited (%8 ) [& & 7 7% B0 == 75 FT B BR 2 7)) and Ningbo
Yinzhou Pengyi Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited
(BRTEMNRECEERZANBRAA).

Ms. XU graduated from the Correspondence Institute of the Party
School of the Communist Party of China (¥ #£eh st B # (K% 267 ) in
2000, majoring in political science and law. Ms. Xu is a registered tax
agent in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENSNAEEE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. ZHOU Kai (A8l%4), aged 50, is our independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 16 December 2019. He is responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Mr. Zhou has more than 10 years of experience in the area of financial
development and regulations. The following table sets forth the
working experience of Mr. Zhou:

Principal business

Period Name of entity activities
1 BEEEHE TEXBED
June 2021 - Present Changyuan (Ningbo) Enterprise Management consultin

Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
202156 AERE RR(ERCXEEFZABRAA EEEN
January 2022 - Present  Ningbo Yuyao Rural Commercial Bank  Bank
Limited
20251 AERK ERRRENBEERTROBRAR RiT

December 2020 - Present  Ningbo Yongcheng Rural Commercial ~ Bank
Bank Limited

2020512 AE | BERRRENBERTROERLR BT

September 2020 - Present - Ningbo Zhongchun High-tech Co., Ltd.  Non metallic mineral
products industry

202059 AZRE ERPEatRHERAR FeBEMEME
May 2018 — Present Ningbo Zhenhai Rural Commercial Bank  Bank
Limited (2% 488 B i E R 1T
R BRAFE)
2018F5 AERE ERMEEENHERTROER  #7T
NS]
January 2020 - June 2021  DeHeng Law Offices (Ningbo) Law firm

(tmimie (ZR) 2EEBA)

20201 AE202156 F LLRBE(ER) BREHM e
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EENENREEE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Principal business

BYFHITEEw

Period Name of entity activities Position held Responsibilities
HE ERER TEXBED EENBL BE
April 2018 Zhejiang Jinzong Law Firm Law firm Lawyer Providing legal advices to
~ December 2019 (MIeRERMELH) clients in the area of
corporate governance
and financial activities
018F47F HLe REMEHA ERhT 26 REPRULEERR
2019F12 A LREDBBMNER
ER
November 2012 The Financial Affairs Office of Ningbo ~ Government authority ~ Deputy director Formulating and
- July 2017 Municipal Government organising the
(BERTARBHSRIERRE) implementation of the
development plans
of the local capital
market; supervising
the financial activities
in the district
01F11AF ERTARBRAECRIERLE B BlFE HERBHETRIE
2017474 AiHNBRERE L
EENRNEREY
December 2008 The Financial Affairs Office of Yinzhou, ~ Government authority ~ Director Formulating and
- November 2012 District Government, Ningbo organising the
(BRTEMRARBG B IER implementation of the
NE) development plans
of the local financial
market; supervising
the financial activities
in the district
2008F 12 A% ERmBMNEARBGERMIER  BUGKE B HERBRETERS
2012F11 A NS BTIHNRRREL
EENRNEREY

Mr. Zhou graduated from Nanjing University (& 5 A Z2) with a degree
of bachelor of political science in the school of political science and
public administration in July 1994. He also obtained a master degree
of public administration from The Australian National University in July
2004. Mr. Zhou was admitted as a lawyer in the PRC in June 2000.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LAU Chung Wai (2I{f## % %) is our company secretary.

Mr. Lau has over 18 years of experience in accounting and finance. The
following table sets forth the working experience of Mr. Lau:

Period Name of entity Principal business a
M8 BEREEH TEXBED
August 2015 Da Sen Holdings Group Limited Manufacture and sale
- March 2019 (stock code: 1580) products and biom
015F8AE2019F38 AREREEERAA BERHEBARE
(BRIA R : 1580) b
May 2013 Passion Art International Holdings Manufacture and sale
- July 2015 Limited home decoration pri
2013F58% Passion Art International Holdings REREERARK
20155 7R Limited
September 2011 Starcom Worldwide, a subsidiary of Media agency
- April 2013 Publicis Groupe SA, a company listed
on the Euronext Paris
(stock code: PUB. PA)
201MF9RE Starcom Worldwide * 7% 72 5] 7% Publicis B2
201354 Groupe SAHIMT B A A - RERZ

BELZHHET
(B 1R 5% : PUB.PA)

September 2004 - Ernst & Young Assurance
September 2011

2004F9AZE LK EHH B R
2011F9 A4

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor of business administration in accounting in
November 2004. He was admitted as a certified public accountant of
HKICPA in January 2008 and has become a fellow member of HKICPA
since May 2015.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“the
year” or “the year under review”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
12 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong Kong Companies Ordinance”),
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 10 to 19 of this annual report. This discussion forms part
of this report of the directors.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group’s
audited financial statements on pages 62 to 65.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022.

A special dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share was approved by the

Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting held on 17 January
2023 and was paid on 3 February 2023.
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100,000,000 Shares at HK$1.28 each were issued upon Listing and
5,042,000 Shares also at HK$1.28 each were issued pursuant to
the partial exercise of the Over-Allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) on 5 February 2020. The net proceeds raised by the
Company from the Listing (including the proceeds from the partial
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option amounted to HK$6,453,760
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.8 million) and after deducting the
listing expenses) amounted to approximately RMB84.1 million. Such net
proceeds were applied in the same manner and the same proportion
as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the Prospectus and also the announcement of the Company dated
2 August 2022. Such net proceeds have been fully utilised during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The table below sets out the details of the application of the net
proceeds:

R &8 1.287 7T % 17 100,000,000 A%
f&fn - BR2020F 2 A5 HIBEITHE S5 A8
R E(EERHBERER)ETR1.288
JCEE175,042,000 5 1D - A AR ETE
BHRBEFE(RETESSBEERENS
FRIE6,453,760B L (HHERHWARESSH
L) Wk EmHASE) OB AR
AEL - ARFIEEBBRERIKRKE X
FriSsBERA® | — SR AAT HEA2022F
SA2AZRAEFEENMARFAMMBRLL
EFER LTS HRIEFRE - BEERIEF
BOREE2022F12 A31 B ILFERNER
HEA -

TREHI BRI FEEBOFARBR

Net proceeds

Increasing production lines for candles and expanding production
capability in home fragrance

EMEBNEESULBARETRENEY

Acquisition of a piece of land for expansion of production capacity

W - A A E R

Strengthening research and development capabilities

PSRBT BE

Upgrading information system and logistics capacities

BERRG RN TR

General working capital purpose
E-REEESRE

Net proceeds

unutilised as at

Planned utilised 31 December 2022
EEHE M2022F12831H
g FERERE KRDERBRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T AREF T
39,963 (39,963) -
18,846 (18,846) -
10,348 (10,348) -
7,067 (7,067) _
7,908 (7,908) -
84,132 (84,132) -
B IER AR AR “EFFR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEHRE (@®)

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 169 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries of the Company
purchased, redeemed or sold the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
(as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB249,653,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 67% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 26%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the total purchases for the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Chairman and executive Director

Mr. JIN Jianxin

Executive Director

Mr. TIAN Dong

Non-executive Director

Mr. SHAQ Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAl Chun Yu

Ms. XU Qiong (appointed on 19 April 2022)
Mr. ZHOU Kai

Mr. YANG Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022)

Mr. SHAO Patrick and Mr. LAl Chun Yu will retire in accordance with
articles 108(a) and 108(b) of the Articles and they being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all independent non-executive Directors regarding each of the factors
referred to in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
the Company still considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEHRE (@®)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 20 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remunerations are determined by the Board with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. JIN Jianxin and Mr. TIAN

Dong, executive Directors, and Mr. SHAO Patrick, the non-executive
Director, have waived their emoluments granted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a permitted indemnity
provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was in
force for an indemnity against certain liabilities incurred by Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. JIN Jianxin, being an executive Director and a beneficial shareholder
of Shaoxing Jingming Culture Development Company Limited (43 &1
SR E R AR A R)) (“Shaoxing Jingming”) and Ningbo Jingyuan
Cultural Development Company Limited (& BT XL E R ER A
Al) (“Ningbo Jingyuan”), was interested in contracts for the lease
of certain properties to the Group as office and production facilities,
and warehouse and showroom. Further details of the transactions
undertaken in connection therewith are included in the section headed
“CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” and in note 34 to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no Director nor a connected entity of a
Director had interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code, were as follows:
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Note:

(@) King Harmony Limited is wholly owned by Mr. JIN Jianxin, and Mr. JIN Jianxin is
deemed to be interested in the 229,146,000 Shares owned by King Harmony Limited
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and chief executive had registered an interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The Group had 557 employees in the PRC, Australia and Hong Kong
as at 31 December 2022. The total salaries and related costs granted
to employees amounted to approximately RMB69.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Group’s remuneration policy, bonus and share option scheme
determines benefits of employees (including Directors) based on
the duties and performance of each individuals. The Group has also
participated in the mandatory provident fund retirement benefit
scheme in Hong Kong, and the central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government in the PRC. The Group arranges trainings
necessary to employees for performing their duties.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of
the Group, including any executive Director, non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group or any subsidiaries of the Company. The Scheme is effective for
a period of ten years commencing on 16 January 2020, after which
period no further options may be granted but the provisions of the
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects and
options granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.
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The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 40,000,000 Shares. The maximum number of Shares
issuable under the Scheme to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue as
of the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
Shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted. No option may be granted more than
10 years after the date of approval of the Scheme. Subject to earlier
termination by our Company in general meeting or by our Board, the
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as our Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less
than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Shares trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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The Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not carry
voting rights until completion of the registration of the grantee (or any
other person) as the holder thereof. Subject to the aforesaid, Shares
allotted and issued on the exercise of options will rank pari passu in all
respects and shall have the same voting, dividend, transfer and other
rights, including those arising on liquidation as attached to the other
fully paid Shares in issue on the date of issue.

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any of the Directors or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Mr. JIN Jianxin, being an executive Director and a beneficial shareholder
of Shaoxing Jingming and Ningbo Jingyuan was interested in contracts
for the lease of certain properties to the Group as office and production
facilities, and warehouse and showroom. Further details of the
transactions undertaken in connection therewith are included in the
section headed “CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS”
and in note 34 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERHKRRHMWATHREOR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS #HERKRMOHEEEXE
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests and short positions 72022412 A31H + LA NMEARR & IA K&
of 5% or more of the share capital and share options of the Company — BERX#E5% 3k LA b~ 4 25 MK B s 8RR 55 55
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the  KRHAEIEHIE 336 IR EARNRRAFE 21

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: =EEMA
Long positions in Shares RONEFE
Number of Shares held
EERMEA
Directly Through Percentage of
beneficially Through controlled the Company’s
Name Notes owned spouse corporation Total share capital
EERDFRREZ
] J/ir3 ERERER BRER BABIEZE @t ERil
CHEN Jiangyan (@) - 229,146,000 - 229,146,000 56.57%
REZ
King Harmony Limited 229,146,000 - - 229,146,000 56.57%
BHARRA
RU Liming (b) - - 54,102,857 54,102,857 13.36%
ZBREA
DMA Limited 54,102,857 - - 54,102,857 13.36%
ERERAT
Notes: HfaE -

(@  Ms. CHEN Jiangyan is the spouse of Mr. JIN Jianxin and therefore is deemed to be (@) BREZZLREEMELMERE - ﬁﬂl&tiﬁﬂi?ﬁ:
interested in all the Shares Mr. JIN Jianxin is interested in under the SFO. REEGY  REZZTRE AN SEN T EHE
BREZOFA RN P RAER -

(b)  DMA Limited is owned as to 80.70% by Mr. RU Liming and Mr. RU Liming is deemed ~ (b) ~ ZAZ BT ERHBRIFAR A F80.70% KAL) -
to be interested in the 54,102,857 Shares owned by DMA Limited under the SFO. UL IR IR 38 5 R B E G BI - 2022 B Se R R BN R
BARATREA 54,102,857 R H AR ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in Shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

On 29 April 2022, each of Ningbo Kwung’s and Ningbo Fenyuan, both
of which being indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into tenancy agreements with Ningbo Jingyuan, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and is directly owned as to
approximately 98.81% by Mr. JIN Jianxin, the controlling Shareholder
and an executive Director. Pursuant to those tenancy agreements,
each of Ningbo Kwung’s and Ningbo Fenyuan agreed to lease certain
properties from Ningbo Jingyuan as production facilities. The lease
terms for these properties are from 1 May 2022 to 30 April 2023 and
the total monthly rent is RMB414,123.7.

The Group has a stable growth on the business over the past years and
the management of the Group expects that the growth will sustain in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group intends to lease those
properties to expand the production capacities. In addition, the Group
currently subcontracts certain production to outside parties and the
Group intends to reduce the subcontracting arrangement for achieving
a better product quality and also more stable production time. The
entering into of those tenancy agreements can provide the Group with
additional production facilities to satisfy its business operation needs.

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 29 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
under the applicable accounting standards for preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and as disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transaction that is subject to, among other
things, the reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the
Company has complied with the requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total
number of issued Shares were held by the public as at 31 December
2022.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

JIN Jianxin
Chairman

Hong Kong 31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRER®RS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 (currently referred
to as code provision C2.1) of the Corporate Governance Code, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with the applicable
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition
As at 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this report, the Board
comprises six Directors, including two executive Directors, one non-

executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIN Jianxin (Chairman)
Mr. TIAN Dong

Non-executive Director

Mr. SHAO Patrick

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAl Chun Yu

Ms. XU Qiong (appointed on 19 April 2022)
Mr. ZHOU Kai

Mr. YANG Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022)
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Board meetings, board committee meetings and

general meetings

The attendance of each Director for the Board meetings, board
committee meetings and general meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the following table:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TtEEERRE (@\)

EEEER EEZEETEER
BREXE
BEEHENEZE2022F12A31BILEE
ByrrvEEeen BERZESEZDIWE
KezEBHMNOT

Meeting attended/meetings eligible to attend
SELRERY CERLEEERY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Shareholders’
Directors B2 Board committee committee committee meetings
gzg EnZee ¥MzEe REZEE REAE
Executive Directors HiTES
JIN Jianxin E Ll 414 N/A TN A /1 1/1 11
TIAN Dong AR 4/4 N/A MR 1N n n
Non-executive Director FHUTES
SHAQ Patrick B¥ 4/4 12 N/A T3 N/A N n
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
LAl Chun Yu PRF 4/4 20 17 /1 17
XU Qiong (appointed on 19 April 2022) %I (RNF
4R19HEZT) 3R N/A TR N/A TR 00 11
ZHOU Kai kD 414 22 11 NA TR 11
YANG Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022) #5714 (742022 F
4R 19BEHT) 01 N/A TNE A N/A T A 0/ 0/0
WttERERAT —ToFFH 4]



The board diversity policy sets out the objective and approach to
achieve and maintain diversity of the Board of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the Board and
maintaining the high standard of corporate governance, the Company
recognises increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in a number of aspects,
including but not limited to professional experience, gender, age,
cultural and education background, knowledge, ethnicity and length
of service and any other factors that the Board might consider relevant
and applicable from time to time in order to achieve board diversity.
These differences will be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and, when possible, should be balanced
appropriately. All Board appointments will be based on merit and the
contribution which the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
Candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard
for the benefits of the diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to professional experience
and qualifications, gender, age, cultural and education background,
knowledge, ethnicity, skills, industry experience and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The nomination committee
of the Company will discuss and agree annually all measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises five male Directors and
one female Director. As at 31 December 2022, approximately 67% of
the Group’s employees (including senior management) are female and
33% are male.
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Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive should be segregated
and should not be performed by the same individual. However, we do
not have a separate chairman and chief executive and Mr. JIN Jianxin
currently performs these two roles. Throughout our business history,
Mr. Jin, being a founder of our Group and a controlling Shareholder,
has held the key leadership position of our Group and has been deeply
involved in the formulation of corporate strategies and management
of the business and operations of our Group since its establishment.
Taking into account the consistent leadership within our Group, our
Board believes that it is in the best interests of our Group and our
Shareholders as a whole to have Mr. Jin taking up both roles for
effective and efficient overall strategic planning and continuation of the
implementation of such plans for our Group. Our Board considers that
the balance of power and authority under the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable our Company to make
and implement decisions promptly and effectively. Save as disclosed in
this section, our Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group,
and delegates day-to-day operations to the management team of the
Group. The Board provides directions to the management team by
laying down strategies and plans, and then oversees the implementation
performed by the management team. The Board also timely monitor
the Group’s operational and financial performance through monthly
reports prepared by the management of the Group.

The Board also reviews the compensation policies, succession planning,
internal control system and risk management system regularly through
various committees established under the Board.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three
years, renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the day following the expiry of the then current term
of appointment, unless terminated by either the Company or each of
the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors by giving at
least three months’ notice in writing at the end of the aforementioned
three-year term and any time thereafter.

The table set forth below summarises the annual remuneration for each
of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors:
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Annual

remuneration

Director = FEEH M
Mr. SHAO Patrick BRE RMB80,000
AR #80,0007T

Mr. LAl Chun Yu RIRF L HKD 180,000
180,00078 7T

Ms. XU Qiong ®mm|izt RMB80,000
AR #80,0007T

Mr. ZHOU Kai Bl RMB80,000
AR #80,0007T

The nomination committee of the Company makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors, and
succession planning for Directors.

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the nomination committee of the Company
shall consider a variety of factors including without limitation the
following in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the relevant
industry and other relevant sectors;

() commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to
the Company’s business;
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diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;

the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
nomination committee of the Company or the Board from time to
time.

The Company currently has three committees established under the
Board, which are listed as follows:

Audit committee

Remuneration committee

Nomination committee

The role and function of the audit committee of the Company is
summarised below:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditor

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor;

to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

to consider any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;
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e  to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

e  to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services;

e  to report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed; and

e to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor.

Review of the Company’s financial information

e to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual
report, interim report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them; and

e to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review, if applicable, and final audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where
necessary).

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

e to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

e to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective systems;

e to consider major findings from investigations on risk management

and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;
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where an internal audit function exists,

(a) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors;

(b) to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company;
and

(c) to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the external auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

to review the Company’s statement on internal control systems
(where one is included in the annual report) prior to endorsement
by the Board;

to report to the Board on the matters in the code provision under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules;

to consider any other matters specifically referred to the audit
committee by the Board including but not limited to the following:

(@) to review the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Company, including the internal controls on
bank account management and the monitoring of bank
transactions on a quarterly basis in order to detect and
prevent improper bank activities and transactions;

(b) to review the report on bank account activities, material bank
transactions and all incoming wire transfers on a quarterly

basis to detect irregularities;

(c) toreport irregularities (if any) to the Board immediately;
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(d) to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The audit committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

(e) to review the findings of the Company’s internal audit
division from time to time.

The audit committee is currently chaired by Mr. LAl Chun Yu, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other members of the
audit committee are Mr. SHAO Patrick, a non-executive Director, and
Mr. ZHOU Kai, an independent non-executive Director.

The role and function of the remuneration committee of the Company
is summarised below:

e  to establish and review the Company’s policy and structure of the
remuneration for Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

e to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, or to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management;

e to make recommendations to the Board on employee benefit
arrangement;

e to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

e to consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration;

e to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals

by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;
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e to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company;

e to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

e  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration and that, as regards the
remuneration of a non-executive Director who is a member of the
Committee, his/her remuneration should be determined by the
other members of the Committee;

e  to advise Shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’ approval under
the Listing Rules; and

e  to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration committee is currently chaired by Mr. ZHOU Kai,
an independent non-executive Director and the other members of the
remuneration committee are Mr. JIN Jianxin, an executive Director and
Mr. LAl Chun Yu, an independent non-executive Director.
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The role and function of the nomination committee of the Company is
summarised below:

. to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience
and length of services) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate strategy of the
Company;

e toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals for nomination of directorships of the
Company;

e to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

e  to advise the Board on the following issues on the selection of
an individual to be nominated as an independent non-executive
Director:

(@) the process used for identifying the individual and why the
individual should be elected and the reasons why it considers
the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the individual would still be able to devote sufficient
time to the Board;

() the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

(d) how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

e to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment or removal of
directors of the Company and succession planning for directors
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company;
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e to implement and review the Board diversity policy of the
Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”); recommend any
revisions of the Board Diversity Policy to the Board; review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives;

e disclose the Board Diversity Policy or a summary of such policy,
in particular, the measurable objectives that it has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on
achieving these objectives and its review results in the Company’s
corporate governance report annually; and

e to review and disclose the policy for nomination of directors
implemented, as appropriate, and a summary of the work during
the year in the Company’s corporate governance report annually.

The nomination committee is currently chaired by Ms. XU Qiong, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other members of the
nomination committee are Mr. JIN Jianxin, an executive Director and
Mr. LAl Chun Yu, an independent non-executive Director.

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company in respect of the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. No
non-audit services have been provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TtEERBRE (&)

An analysis of the fees paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers st & Bl k8 & 5t EI5 AT R & = 2022 F
in relation to services rendered to the Group for the year ended 31 12 A31BItEEAAEBIREZREMD

December 2022 is as follows: HEMESINZBRASWOT
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Audit services ZER TS 1,680
Non-audit services B RS -
1,680
DIVIDEND POLICY 1% SBR

The Board may consider declaring and paying dividends to the ZBEEAIZEBU TREZERBKRRSTIREL
Shareholders by taking into account the factors set out below. Such RS - KRR R SR MIRMNHREBHE
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall remain to E&2#EISRTE  WESTHAEBEDER
be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the — #R B K AR LA R AR BIEY R F -

requirements under all applicable laws, rules and regulations as well as

the Articles.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and determining R & B2 & RIAIAE I E F I8 & 58
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into consideration, inter alia, ZTEEEZEIUTEE(HFAERE):
the following factors:

(a) results of operation; (a) BEEE:
(b) cash flows; (b) BERE
() financial condition; (0 BAFARR
(d) future business prospects; (d) FEREBKAI=
(e) statutory and contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends;  (e) JRTIILERLETE RS LR &
and
() any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate. ) FNESESAUERLEENHMESR -

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with respect ZEZ€ 0] gh AR AR D AT D A HEE
to the Company’s Shares on a per share basis. BEIRNERE (E) -
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the conditions
and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period as interim dividend,
final dividend, special dividend and any distribution of net profits that
appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of the Company
available for distribution. Except in the case of interim dividend, any
dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an ordinary
resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and must not
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or
by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to and in
accordance with the procedures set out in the Articles.

The Company will continually review the dividend policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/
or modify the policy at any time. The policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount and in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Shareholders can at any time raise enquiries to the Board. The enquiries
must be in writing with contact information of the Shareholder(s) and
deposited at the principal place of business of Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 1102, 11th Floor, Brill Plaza, No. 84 To Kwa Wan Road, To Kwa
Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary
of the Company.

In addition, any one or more duly registered holder of the Shares
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Overall, the Company considers the above Shareholders’
communication policy of the Group implemented and conducted during
the year to be effective. The Company will continue to review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication
policy by Shareholders’ feedback from the above channel.

There is no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board confirms that it has conducted a review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The review was performed by the internal
audit team.

The Board concludes, based on the result of the review, that the
risk management and internal control systems currently in place are
adequate and effective. The Board expects that a review of the risk
management and internal control systems will be performed annually.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Kwung’s Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Kwung’s Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 62 to 167, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
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significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. FRHEAMRAER
PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong FEICH A E B 7 HTF BT - Bl IR T A =1
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com Mk : +8522289 8888 - fHH : +852 2810 9888 - www.pwchk.com
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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A key audit matter related to revenue recognition on
wholesale of goods is identified in our audit as follows:

Key Audit Matter
BAREAEE

Revenue recognition - wholesale of goods

WA - #RE

Refer to Note 2.20 and Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A2HRE MIERARME2.20 kMisE6 -

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is RMB 719 million. The Group’s major revenue
transactions are from wholesale of goods. Revenue is
recognised when control of the underlying products has
been transferred to the customers.
EXEEBZE2022F12A31BIEFEZWRARARY
79E& T  EEENTIERARGREREER - K
AREBERZEGIRECEBRERPH®R -

We focus on revenue from wholesale of goods due to the
high volume of sales, and thus significant audit time and
resources were devoted in this area.
BPEIREHEER I RACHRIEEEREX
MAREEIRAREESREREIR

B EREMmBABRNERESFTAREZTHA
LI

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNES M EERRENER

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis,
management’s key controls over revenue recognition in
respect of the Group’s sales transactions, from approval
of customer orders, all the way to settlement of trade
receivables.

B EEENHEHEXZHBMETET # A1
REEEEUHERTFITERHFEZRWFIAL K
AWERH BB -

We conducted testing for revenue transactions on a
sample basis by examining the relevant supporting
documents, including sales contracts or customer orders,
sales invoices, shipping documents, customs declaration
forms for export sales, and cash collections.

B RmEELE BEREREEIEXH 81 i
EANAEFPAE HEERE MEXMH HOHEHE
BEARHRERRBSWE - HWARZFHETAR -

We performed confirmation procedures on selected
customers’ receivable balances at the balance sheet date
and on selected customers’ revenue transaction amounts
during the year.
BMEREEABRAMZETREPEKFIERER
FRNEERPHWAR ZEEETRHERR

We tested sales transactions that took place before and after
the balance sheet date to assess whether the transactions
were recognised in the appropriate reporting period based
on the supporting documents obtained.

BMEEERERAMIZETHNHER HETAR -
DARIRFTIS a8 X AT R 5 = BB E WS B R -

Based on our work performed, we found the revenue
transactions tested were supported by the relevant evidence
that we gathered.

ERFHATHIF  RMAER  BARENEEEE
XFEAFRNBARS °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B Z RS (®)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included the
Kwung’s Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report (the “annual report”)
(but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information to be included in the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt &t AR®T AREBF T
Revenue WA 6 718,675 631,395
Cost of sales SHE R A 7 (584,280) (510,269)
Gross profit ER 134,395 121,126
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (66,062) (55,701)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEMAZ 7 (24,447) (19,683)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 & & /& Jal {8 /&5 18 /% 58 21,22 (354) (2,454)
Other income H e 9 6,364 10,871
Other gains — net Hiham- 58 10 8,000 2,156
Operating profit KRR 57,896 56,315
Finance income B sk 1,925 491
Finance costs B 35 PR AR (3,447) (691)
Finance costs — net BTSN AN - S5 HE 11 (1,522) (200)
Profit before income tax BR TS B AR R 56,374 56,115
Income tax expense FrisfiF X 13 (3,736) (7,077)
Profit for the year FERER 52,638 49,038
Profit attributable to: AT R A -
— Owners of the Company —ARREBA 52,605 49,000
- Non-controlling interests —FEIERR S 33 38
Other comprehensive loss Hitt 2 HEEE
Items that may be reclassified GEE A B A E B2
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation of &GN 2 B 5 =48
foreign operations 122 (2)
Total comprehensive income FRAXEWEEAE
for the year 52,760 49,036
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
mEeEBEEREMEZEKEFR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A831BLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥T R ARETT
Total comprehensive income T RHAEAEGEZZE
attributable to: W s 4a%E
— Owners of the Company R YNCIE Z=UN 52,702 48,998
— Non-controlling interests — R4 M 25 58 38
Cents Cents
a3 )
Earnings per share for profit KAREE AEGZEF
attributable to owners of the ZEBRERN(ZEER
Company (expressed in RMB AR¥RTR)
per share)
— Basic and diluted —EARR#E 14 13.0 12.1

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 441825 & H b 2 @ U 25 5k fE B R
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the Bz —4fR3:E -
accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other current assets

Cash and cash in bank

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note
k=3
BE
FRBEE
M - RERERE 15
REYE 16
FREEE 18
B EE 17
BREFEHERE 37
FnBEERE
REBEE
FE 20
Z 5 W sk IE 21
TERRIE - ke REAM
FEWFRIR 22
BEATEGFAERZZ
SREE 23
HEfns&EE 24
ReRRTHRS 25
hBEESE
EEEE
R
AATEEAELER
&N 26
AR 15 5 (B 26
EmREE 27
IREB &R
HE RS
A
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As at 31 December

M12A31H

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
52,778 46,015
7,536 7,913
37,097 9,812
4,597 4,371
72 388
102,080 68,499
66,061 89,639
120,661 146,729
21,350 32,458
103,975 2,408
105,000 7,013
143,221 199,742
560,268 477,989
662,348 546,488
359 359
249,653 249,653
(20,846) (26,148)
197,742 150,342
426,908 374,206
632 574
427,540 374,780



As at 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H

As at 31 December

M®12A318
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARE T AREFTT
Liabilities a8E&
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 IR FRIE & BAth FE S R IA 28 84,225 78,068
Borrowings (=T 29 135,000 80,000
Contract liabilities A48aE 6 6,219 4,955
Current income tax liabilities BIERFER & E 4,055 5,622
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 201 2,544
Financial liabilities at fair value through & AFEFTAIEZR 2
profit or loss TR AE 23 4,972 278
Deferred income tax liability BEFERBE 317 136 -
Total current liabilities mBBEBE 234,808 171,467
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 - 241
Total liabilities BEAE 234,808 171,708
Total equity and liabilities KRR EEERE 662,348 546,488

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read | X454 B1 7%tk S 55 e B E R B 5T — OFRD:E -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 62 to 167 were approved by the # ¥R FE62E 167 B 2 B & 2 72023
board of directors of the Company on 31 March 2023 and were signed 3 A31 BEAAREZEET L W H 5

on its behalf by: EERKREEF:
JIN Jianxin TIAN Dong
SEH ES
Executive director Executive director
HITEE HITEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Balance at R2022£1R18
1 January 2022 ifegos

Comprehensive income 2K

Profit for the year FREF

Exchange differenceson B EFINEBZ
translation of foreign EHER
operations

Transactions with HEREFAURER
owners in their BEEANBHEST
capacity as owners HR %

Appropriation to statutory & £ R
reserves

Balance at R2022512A318
31 December 2022 k3

Share

capital

BRA

Note RMB’000
it AR¥TRr
359

27 -
27 -
359
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Attributable to owners of the Company

LINGiE 2PN
Share Other  Retained
premium  reserves  earnings
RPEE HitRE RERF
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARSI AR®TRT AR®TR

249,653

249,653

(26,148)

97

97

5,205

(20,846)

150,342

52,605

52,605

(5,205)

197,742

Subtotal
Nt
RMB’000
ARBT T

374,206

52,605

97

52,702

426,908

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity
FERERE BRAH
RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRE AR®TR
574 374,780
33 52,638
25 122
58 52,760
632 427,540



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEa®E R (HE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAEERAEE
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Subtotal interests equity
KkE  BHEE HtRE REEN NEEOHEERER EREE

Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
fiz ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR AREBTRT ARETR

Balance at R2021E1A18H
1 January 2021 e 359 249,653 (29,847) 105,043 325,208 536 325,744

Comprehensive income 2 K3
Profit for the year EREH - - - 49,000 49,000 38 49,038
Exchange differenceson ~ BEEHEH

translation of foreign EHER

operations 27 - - ) - 2 - %)

- - @) 49,000 48,998 38 49,036

Transactions with HREEANEESR
owners in their BEANER
capacity as owners ETHRS

Appropriation to statutory ¥ E 4 8 B

reserves 27 - - 3,701 (3,701) - - -
Balance at R2021F12A318
31 December 2021 0Fe3S 359 249,653 (26,148) 150,342 374,206 574 374,780
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARETT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities = &% Eiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%um;
Cash generated from/(used in) operations f”*%%‘ B/ () RE 32(a) 117,381 (29,815)
Interest received B U F B 1,925 488
Income tax paid B FT1S %R (4,851) (3,610)
Net cash generated from/(used in) TS (FTA)
from operating activities BEFEE 114,455 (32,937)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHFBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B ¥ - BE &R B (18,688) (13,154)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE (923) (301)
Payments for land use rights T FE A AE IR (30,130) -
Payments for financial instruments ST AR (332,450) (155,916)
Proceeds from financial instruments SR T AMSEHIE 133,195 209,364
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  H & ¥ - W%& %1
and equipment Fri§ 818 32(b) 1,217 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEH ()i
investing activities BEFEE (247,779) 39,993
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A8318LEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TT AREFTT
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEFERERE
Proceeds from borrowings EEERE 138,500 10,000
Proceeds from discounted bills Eﬁﬁmﬁz}aﬁ%?ﬂ 56,500 70,000
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (140,000) -
Interest paid EAFLE (3,447) (688)
Principal elements of lease payments HENREKEEH D 32(c) (2,881) (3,355)
Net cash generated from financing RMEETBMERSFEHE
activities 48,672 75,957
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRELZEEY(HD)
cash equivalents IR (84,652) 83,013
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REFMERE KBRS EEY
the year 199,742 110,735
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SMNE[ER&F) 7 & 12,799 5,994
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERRERRESEEY
of the year 127,889 199,742

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in EX4FEHREREREEFEMOLES G
conjunction with the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial % fif 5= — 0 B3 -
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kwung’s Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 13 November 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap.22,
law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is 89 Nexus Way,
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-9009, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in design and manufacturing of home fragrance related products
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), distributing the
products to overseas and in the PRC. The ultimate controlling
company is King Harmony Limited. The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Group is Mr. Jin Jianxin (“Mr. Jin” or the
“Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

The Company’s share began to list on the Stock Exchange on 16
January 2020.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance cap.622. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) — measured at fair value or
revalued amount.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

In 2022, the Group adopted the following amendments
and improvement to existing standards, which are
relevant to its operations.

The group has applied the following amendments or
annual improvements for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2022:

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to HKAS 16

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020, and

Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to HKFRS 3.
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(%)

2.1 mBLEXE ()
(i) B KA EH
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
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IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

(iv)

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021 — Amendment to HKFRS 16 (March
2021) (the “HKFRS 16 Amendment (March
2021)")

Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations

The group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction — amendments to HKAS
12, and

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2.

New standards not yet adopted

Certain accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2022 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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e KRR ME @E)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

(#&)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards not yet adopted (Continued)

RAEEAERETTRRED

2.1 RBEXE @)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)
BEAGEEAF 1R LB EY

B EREBREFE 29
(BETAN)
HKAS 8 (Amendment)
BB ERFE 8 (BRI A)
HKAS 12 (Amendment)

FEGERIF 125 (BR] )

HKFRS 17
BAMBWELERE17 5
HK Int 5 (2020)

BEBREESH (20209F)
HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BEAGEEAFE 15 (BRTA)

HKFRS 16 (Amendment)

BB EHREERZE 165
(BETA)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

(iv) il R R 4 Y 37 28 B (4)
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1st January 2023
SRTBRA KR 20231 A 1H
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1st January 2023
BEHEFTHER 20231 A1 H
Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1st January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
HE-QFELZEERAGHERM 20231 A1 H
RIER IR
Insurance Contracts 1st January 2023
FRRAEK 20231 A1H
Classification by the Borrower of a 1st January 2023
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
ERAE B RERKEEGRRD 20231 A1 H

EHERNSE
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
BESEARBIIERE
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ErERMEEESE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

BEMBREEYNFI10RLEE REERABERFHAZRFTZME

SEPERF 285 (BRI A)

HERRABE

1st January 2024

2024%1 A1H
1st January 2024
2024%1 81H

To be announced

(SN

The adoption of the above new standard, amendments
and interpretation to existing standards is not expected
to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
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IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e  fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement,

and

o  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.
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2 WEEERSTHRET

(%)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 B A=) @

22186t @®)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued) (a) EXESHE)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and BABERBRIN R
contingent liabilities assumed in a business ES Kl
combination are, with limited exceptions, BENERAEZBER
measured initially at their fair values at the HABE T RWE
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non- HEI 2 AFEGF=E K
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an EEEZBREEER
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value R B RS T IE R
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate friEzs - AR TFEHIA
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable FE 128 R 4 5 R 15 U BB
assets. ERAHANEEFEN

L BlEHE -
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. WREE R AN E £

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the
date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
at which a similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration
is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are

33 ©
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

76

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transaction with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transaction — that is, as transactions with
the owner of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners, The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2 REHERSTHEREH
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) ()

2.2 B A= @
22186t @®)

() HEHBLE

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES

78

IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Investments in subsidiaries are also assessed for
impairment in accordance with Note 2.8 and written
down to their recoverable amounts.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker
(“*CODM"), who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic

decisions.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES

80

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

() Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of financial
position;

e income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022

FUEEREHBERD

(%)

2.4 5N E ()

(0 EELQF

Hge BB EIHER AR
BETRNBEINE (BFRE
BHERERREENEE) N
R M B AR T TR
BERIHREY

. SRABMHBRRE
PO BE & 8 R 3% B
R B B T E
EIH

s BEZREEENE
R A E YA R B S IE F
YERBE (FRIFLE
RYTPRER S AR
TEXNRAZENS
B EHBERT

WxHEB RS A #k
DR

s FBEHRUEELMENZE
BEHMEERERTD
HERR o

RmEGEARBR  BER
SMNE BRI % B F B A K3
ERZEEEZHHERBZ
fEEREMERMTAELZ
PE i Z BRI E Al 2 Wk
R NEERIIEBHRE
BERKEFE 8D 2T
AEER HEELZRE
MoBERE (FREHERE
mZ— B e

W B D B T R R
AT EREEBZHIEY
iR BB - A R R E
EIRH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2 MREERETHERES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (#)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 9% - BERRZE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost N U= - B ol DN

less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs to their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

’F

Transportation equipment
ERRE

Electronic equipment
BT RH

Machinery

He A

Furniture

HA

Leasehold improvements

MERE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“Other gain/(losses) — net” in the Consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields
and are not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are also carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

2.7 Intangible assets

(a) Patent

Patent is shown at historical cost. It has a finite useful
life of 5 to 10 years and is subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

When determining the length of useful life of a patent,
the Group takes into account the estimated period
during which such asset can bring economic benefits to
the Group.

(b) Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Considering the acquired software is well-developed,
off the shelf software with no contractual terms, and
the Group can use the software as long as it can meet
the Group’s business needs, based on the current
functionalities equipped by the software and the daily
operation needs, the Group considers a useful life of
5-10 years is the best estimation under current business
needs.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES

84

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in profit or loss of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in profit or loss of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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2 BASIS

OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in profit or loss
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instrument carried at amortised cost and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1.1 details how the Group determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
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IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

2.100ffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the relevant company or the
counterparty.

2.11Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.13Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

2.14Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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90

IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.16 Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments
that qualify for hedge accounting.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Changes
in the fair value of any derivative financial instruments are
recognised immediately in the profit or loss, except where
the derivative financial instruments are qualified for hedge
accounting.

2.17Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period in the countries/regions where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18Employee benefits

(i) Pension obligations

(ii)

The Group only operates defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plans. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The
Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to
the contributions payable in each year. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.
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RAEEAERETTRRED
()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18Employee benefits (continued) 218 EEF @

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
relevant Group entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the
payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

2.19Provisions

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES

94

WREERSFTEXR

4=

B

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

(%)

2.20 I A TE B2

(i)

4

c

S miEE - #H
AEERHLBEM S RE R

\

The Group manufactures and sells a range of candles,
home fragrance and home accessories in the wholesale
market. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have
been shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
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been satisfied.

The products are sold with retrospective volume rebates
based on aggregate sales over a 12 months period
to certain customers. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
rebates, using the expected value method, and revenue
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. The revenue
from these sales is normally billable immediate upon
the delivery of the products. No element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with no credit
term, which is consistent with market practice. The
Group’s obligation to replace faulty products under the
standard warranty terms is assessed and recognised as a

provision.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage

of time is required before the payment is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2 MREERETHERES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ()
2.20Revenue recognition (Continued) 220U A TBRR (|
(i) Sale of goods - retail (i) EmEE—ZE
The Group operates some stores selling candles, home REBKLEETIEGHLE#E
fragrance and home accessories. Revenue from the B RKEBERREHm-
sale of goods is recognised when a Group entity sells a HEEmMEEANBAREESE
product to the customer. EERRE P HSEmE R
7

Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
when the customer purchases the products and takes
delivery in store. It is the Group’s policy to sell its
products to the end customer with a right of return

ERFPEEEMIANIEHNA
R R 5 E BN 3| A

iﬁ"ﬁﬂmmg}fﬁﬁm/\é
MR7BEARBIR; A%Tﬁ$%

within 7 days. Therefore, a refund liability (included in E 2 EEK o Eit RREE G
trade and other payables) and a right to the returned %%&ﬁ@ﬁgﬁ IEW) P53
goods (included in other current assets) are recognised BREREGIAEMRESEE)

for the products expected to be returned. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate such returns at the time
of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method).
Because the number of products returned has been
steady for years, it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The validity of this assumption and the estimated
amount of returns are reassessed at each reporting
date.

(iii) Accounting for costs to fulfil a contract

As the transportation activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are
not separate performance obligation, therefore, related
costs are contract fulfil cost which are capitalised
as assets according to HKFRS 15. These assets are
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods to which
the assets relate. Related assets are not material at
the balance sheet date due to the short period of
transportation and are charged into the cost of sales
directly as incurred.

(iii) B
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

96

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Presentation of contract assets and

(v)

liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If
the Group recognises the related revenue before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the contract, then the
entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay consideration and the
amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. For a single contract with the
customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

Assets recognised from incremental costs
to obtain a contract

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph
94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the incremental costs
of obtaining contracts such as sales commissions as an
expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the
assets that the Group otherwise would have recognised
is one year or less.

2.21Earnings per share

(i)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2 MREERETHERES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ()
2.21Earnings per share (Continued) 221 R B F @)
(i) Diluted earnings per share (i) BREFSER
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in BRESRNAREETTR
the determination of basic earnings per share to take ERBREFRERZEFTIN
into account: the after income tax effect of interest and FREETEHESERRE H
other financing costs associated with dilutive potential Z B R E b & AR 2 bR
ordinary shares, and the weighted average number FiENieeE  RREMA
of additional ordinary shares that would have been BEEE T ERRAR - A
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive ROBITZEINE B ME
potential ordinary shares. T8 -
2.22Interest income 22 R B WA
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest FMEWANZeREERDBAE
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except FLABBRAMERTE - HERER
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. EERABRENSREERI -5
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate BAEFEARENEREEMS -
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset ERMECDERUNESMEENERR
(after deduction of the loss allowance). FE R EERER)
2.23Leases 2038
(i) The Group is the lessee (i) ~EBEAEHEA
The Group leases properties and land use right in REB (EARBEAN) R E
the PRC as lessee. Rental contracts of properties are HEMERTHERAE Y
typically made annually on a recurring basis but may XN —REBFREEHE
have extension options as described below. The Group’s EAEELST WAge AT
interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating MEREE AEENLHE
lease payments for land located in the PRC and the RSB NP BA i
lease term is 50 years, which is included in right-of-use MIEMEEREMNH M
assets. EHRS0F ST AEREE
ER o
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a RASEEHAEREEE
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased BB EHERA-IEGAR
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease BENEEEBE -BEHE
payment is allocated between the liability and finance I TE AR E B (E BB S K
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over KeBEH#E - WBEKAEMR
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic EMR A AEBZE  UEFES
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability HEeEREELENN S ER
for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated or R - TRAEEERRE
amortised over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and BEEEECAFHEEE
the lease term on a straight-line basis. HmEPREN —EH[ERN

FHERITE S -

WtHERERAT —T--FFHE 9/
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2 MREERETHERES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (&)
2.23Leases (Continued) 223 € @)
(i) The Group is the lessee (Continued) (i) XEEAAEEA @

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e  Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e Variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate; and

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e  The amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

e Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

e Any initial direct costs; and

° Restoration costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group is the lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise
equipment and small items of office furniture.

Extension options are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended. The
Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
period of a lease, together with both:

e Periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

e  Periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option.

The Group is the lessor

When assets are leased out under operating lease, the
assets are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position based on the nature of the assets.
Rental income is recognised in profit and loss of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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2

100

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

2.25Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government
grants which are obtained by the Group for the purposes
of purchase, construction or acquisition of the long-term
assets. Government grants related to income refer to the
government grants other than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit and loss of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a systemic basis over the useful lives of the assets.
Government grants to compensate the future costs, expenses
or losses are recorded as deferred income and recognised
in profit or loss when related costs incurred. Government
grants related to income that compensate the incurred costs,
expenses or losses are recognised in profit or loss directly in
current period. The Group applies the presentation method
consistently to the similar government grants in the financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVPL, derivative financial assets and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers,
including outstanding receivables.

(i)

(ii)

Cash in banks

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash deposits at banks
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large size listed
banks. Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9 » which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The expected credit loss also incorporate forward
looking information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

102

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other receivables

Other receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly deposits, advances to
employees and the amounts due from related
parties. The directors of the Company consider
the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Group compares risk of a default
occurring on the assets as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. Internal credit rating;
. External credit rating;

e Actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counterparty’s
ability to meet its obligations;

e Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty;

e Significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the counterparty;

e The employment relationship with the
employee debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 EI A EE @)
3.1 B E kR E @
3 ERE B ()
(i) B REY 378 (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other receivables (Continued)

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded within 90 days of when they
fail due.

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. The Group categories a loan or
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to
make contractual payments/repayable demanded
greater than 180 days past due. Where loans
or receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit
or loss of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Since the advances to employees and amounts due
from related parties had no historical default, at
each reporting period end, the expected losses of
the advances to employees and amounts due from
related parties are measured on a 12-month basis.

The directors of the Company believe that there
was no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

(iv) Forward-looking information

incorporated in the expected credit loss
model

The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit loss. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. The Group has identified key
factors such as the gross domestic product (“GDP”)
of the countries in which it sells its goods to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss
allowance provision were determined as follows:

Trade receivables

31 December 2022
2022412 H31H
RMB’000

AR®TR

Gross
Expected  carrying
lossrate  amount

A

BEE KEAE
Within 30 days 30HA 0.08% 37,295
31 to 180 days 31£180H 0.18% 80,501
18110 1 year 181HE1E 14.33% 1,964
110 2 years 182% 51.83% 2,817
20 3 years 2E35F 100.00% 1,556
Over 3 years A3 F 100.00% -

124,133
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Loss
allowance
provision
BEER
B

30
145
281

1,460
1,556

3,472

(iv) BRIIGEEREZMH
AFIETEE#

AEBECETEL DM
K#Ep B EERR
LEREEBERNIE
RESH YERARF
BE IR N E BRI
BH e REBEEHRF
HEHEERWERZE
REE®RE(BREE
BEDFERAZAAKX
o MEEAE R Bt
REZFRR2EHRE
HHABELEEEX -

72022 F K 2021412
A31 Bz EBEERE
ETraT:

8 5 B

31 December 2021
2001124318
RMB’000
ARBTT

Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount  provision
B BRER
EEX KAAE B

0.17% 48,710 84
0.36% 94,201 339
24.40% 4,188 1,022
55.17% 2,397 1,322
100.00% 755 755
100.00% 603 603

150,854 4,125
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(iv) Forward-looking information (iv) HRIEEE EEE G
incorporated in the expected credit loss AFTEEMEE ) ()
model/ (Continued)

Other receivables (excluding recoverable Hitt W FHIE (FEHE
value added tax) ] B Y g E )
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
0245128318 20145124318
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTR
Basis for recognition Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected of expected credit carrying  allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate loss provision amount  provision loss rate amount provision
RHEERRRG BEER 4 BlakR
RHERE BAEE REAE Bf BEX  HRALE B
Deposits 7.52% 12 months expected 926 70 1051% 2,103 WA
losses
#e nEARHER
Advances to employees 8.56% 12 months expected 1,017 87 10.51% 815 86
losses
XAFEEZH RERRAEE
Amounts due from related 8.56% 12 months expected 462 39 0.18% 145 -
parties losses
MBI TTTR 1ERRAEE
Qthers 8.56% 12 months expected 246 21 10.51% 177 18
losses
Hft 1ERRAEE
2,651 217 3,240 325

WU ERERAT —B-—FFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIE R EEm
3.1 Mg Ak E & )
2B ELSRER

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2Liquidity risk

106

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents or have available funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including loans
from related parties to meet its daily operation working
capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and

(b) net settled derivative financial instruments for
which the contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair value of the Group’s derivative financial
instruments was included at their fair value of RMB
4,207,762 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: a fair value of negative RMB2,130,367) within
the less than 12 months time bucket. This is because
the contractual maturities are not essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. These
contracts are managed on a net fair value basis rather
than by maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEBMBEHRRMET (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)y 3 BEIIEEBEEE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 Mg A e [ & )
3.1.2Liquidity risk (Continued) 312 ENE £ BB ()
Less than Over
1 year 1 year
PR—F BiBE—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo ARETFIT ARETF T
Non-derivatives FLTEITER
As at 31 December 2022 M2022%F12H831H
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A FERTFRIE 19 76,687 468
Lease liabilities HEARE 30 201 =
76,888 468
As at 31 December 2021 M2021%E12831H
Trade and other payables B 5Kk E M EMNFE 19 68,955 348
Lease liabilities HEa®E 30 2,544 241
71,499 589
Derivatives fTET A
As at 31 December 2022 720229128311
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 4@ T & 99,003 =
As at 31 December 2021 M2021%F12H831H
Derivative financial instruments T4 &8 T A 2,130 -

Trade and other payables here exclude non-financial
liabilities of accrued payroll and other taxes payable.

RENHE 5 & H A & 5008
B A AR B A R A

MAZFTRARE -

Rt ZRERD A

RO CFEFR

107
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

108

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.3Foreign exchange risk

The Group sells products internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, primarily with respect to the USD. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currency of the
relevant Group entity.

The Group also entered into foreign currency forwards
in relation to products sales for the next 12 months that
do not qualify as ‘highly probable’ forecast transactions
and hence do not satisfy the requirements for hedge
accounting (economic hedges). The foreign currency
forwards are subject to the same risk management
policies as all other derivative contracts. However, they
are accounted for as derivative financial instruments
with gains (losses) recognised in profit or loss of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities to foreign
exchange risk based on the assumption that USD had
strengthened/weakened by 10% against RMB with all
other variables held constant:

B 7% [ B B FE ()
3.1 IR M A = o)
31350 E Bl B2

AEER2HREEERR
0 R SN X2 5 BE A 2 SN EE [
B EERETT - INERR
RERKBER S LIAEE
EHEBERIIEEE 28
BitEZCRRABEENAGE -

AEBERKRKRI2EARILA
FAEmMINE CINERIIGH -
EAfalRaagt 28|
R W A HH
SR (BB ) BK - SN
BEHANAIMARMITE
BRMEREREEBERAR
R WERSABRLE
fhzHEER2BEANCHE
RziTETR T AR (B18)
N

TERBAANEHEREE X
£ B B 1E B HMNE [ B A 8K
Mo EREEETHARE
FHE, BZ{E10%  MFATA A
{8 B R TE -

As at 31 December

MW12H318

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTTT
USD/RMB exchange rate ETH ARBER

—increase 10% -#R10% 10,271 1,970
USD/RMB exchange rate ETLHARKER

— decrease 10% - fR1E10% (10,271) (1,970)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIEREEEm

3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEKER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net
debt.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group maintained at
net cash position.

AEENEAEESEHEELR
BisEEENEN KMAESE
ARFEH  SEMT D EREMR
Flas - WAEFFIEENE REE A
PRAREARKA -

RTHRBRFEENGERE  ~E
ErAlgE e HERBRR RS
TR BIOHRODALEEEMN
B ET o

REBAERABL R BERE
THER - R RmFABRINA
BMEAAE - FRERBEAEBER
RekASFEMAE -BEX
AR BN R B PR [ 42 ]
mEREE -

M2022F %2021 12 8318 -
AEE G MFFIREAREE ©

WtHERERAT —T--FF£® 09



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation

(i) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and
financial liabilities

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of each
level follows underneath the table.

Recurring fair value measurements

B 3% [ B B TR ()
3.3 AE{EMET

() sHEERESHEEN
DFEBR

7R B Rl 7 T I B IS R
HARANRAFEFAENESH
T AR FEREL & # i &
hEt- RBHLEAREEAT
(EREIRGEPN ¢ PACI S i
B AKRECREFERR
THEERIAS A=AZ
Ao BERN TRETEIM -

EHMATEHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- - pd BB @t
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M7 AR¥Tr ARETr AR¥Tr AR%Tx
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A318
Financial assets SREE
Fixed deposits EHER 24 - 105,000 = 105,000
Funds e 23 - - 101,560 101,560
Wealth management BERTETZ
products issued by B m
commercial banks 23 - 1,650 - 1,650
RMB:USD ARBHEETEE
fixed-fixed cross-currency X EHEER
exchange rate swap 1B H 23 - 765 - 765
107,415 101,560 208975
Financial liabilities SREE
USD:RMB ETHEAREEE
fixed-fixed cross-currency RXEBEEX
exchange rate swap b 23 = (316) = (316)
Foreign currency forwards INEREIE 4 23 = (4,656) = (4,656)
- (4,972) - (4,972)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MXBEREREREm@

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AR EME @

(i) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and (i) eHEERESHEEN
financial liabilities (Continued) A EBH @
Recurring fair value measurements (Continued) HEM L FETE )

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-E = o a@at
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#i  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2021 H2021%12A31R
Financial assets CRHEE
Foreign currency forwards INEREBA L 23 - 2,408 - 2,408
Financial liabilities SRAE
USD:RMB ETHAARKEE
fixed-fixed cross-currency TXEHEER
exchange rate swap 1B H 23 - (278) - (278)
- 2,130 - 2,130
There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level B E2022F &2021F12 A
3 for recurring fair value measurements during the year BTHEFE BREBHATF
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BFrEms F—EB F=

BAKRFE=E 2R B -

W= AR A —s-—FFH 1]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

Level 1:  The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is

not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

172 KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022

B 7% [ B B FE ()
3.3 AFEMEF @

(i) eHEERESHEEN
AT EBH @

AEM L FEE (#)

AEEOBREZNREHR
HRAATFEER ZBHEA
R#EH -

F-F: NEIRMSEEMERIA
MAFEREREARAT
BHRENK - AREREHN
EREENTEHRERER
BRE SSTRINE-B-

FE: UHRERMESEENTA
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BERNEENRIBRED
BRE REORBEIEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MXBEREREREm@

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMGFT @
(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine (i) BEQFEMRAMGE

fair values b X ]

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial At eR I AMASEME

instruments include: e

e the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes s HHRABUIAEMNMISR
for similar instruments B ZEME

e for forward currency forwards — based on forward e FBHIINEERHEH-K
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. W RAEE BIRIEINE

bEE 3

e other techniques, such as discounted cash flow o  HMFEM - HlandrIRIR
analysis EREDN

There were no changes in valuation techniques during HZE2022F k202112 A

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BNHEFE  HERTILE

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for RAFEE REBUERTFE

recurring fair value measurements during current year. RFrEmME £ E-F=

AR = 8 2 R I e % o

WtHERERAT T FFH® /5
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

4

114

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group used judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

(b) Estimation of the fair value of certain
financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined using valuation techniques.
The group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of
changes to these assumptions see note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©)

(d)

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation expenses for its property,
plant and equipment. Management estimates useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment by reference to the
Group’s business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage, expected repair and
maintenance, and technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the market.

Management determines the estimated residual value
for its property, plant and equipment by reference to all
relevant factors at each measurement date. The depreciation
expense will change where the useful lives or residual value
of property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimate.

Uncertain tax position

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Rt ZRERD A

4 ERGEHEET R E @
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AERAFHARRFeREE

BEEBENE BERREN
BErAlEAFEH  RerEEKLE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segment, has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture and
processing of wax products, metal products, glass products and
aromatherapy products. The CODM reviews the operating results
of the business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the CODM regards that there
is only one segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, major of the non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC.

Revenue from external parties contributing 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

Customer A EFEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C BFEC
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TEEREATIELERREEZNN
BEBELEDH TELEREKE
RARBMPTESZ AENEER
KFHERE D BRRE

AEBTERFEHER SBER ¥
BEMMBEEMIKG BBENMNT -
TERERREBZAEBIERS —E
RENE  BEOEKEERE  UBRER
AR D FCAR HORER © Bk - EREER
RERBIER — E ] F B BRS R K

B 53 &P

R2022F K2021F12A318 » A%
EMZEIERBEEIMRFEH -

KB BALTEBAEBRKA10%
A EZ AT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
185,436 84,264
99,511 90,965
85,113 54,821



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from wholesale of goods. WAETZBERBERMEHRE -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by product type is as follows: AEBIZERBAE D HRADITAT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12831BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Revenue from customers: REEFZWA :
Candles 918 498,620 397,465
Home fragrance RERE 111,940 115,799
Home accessories K E &0 108,115 118,131
718,675 631,395
Timing of revenue recognition U A T 7R B
— At a point in time — AR 718,675 631,395
(a) Contract liabilities (a) eNEE
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract REEHRTIWAEENE L
liabilities: &
As at 31 December
A12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Advanced payments from customers KB &P 2 B 3IA 6,219 4,955

W= AR A —s-—ggH 1/
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6 REVENUE (Continued)

(b) Significant change in contract liabilities

(©)

(d)

(e)

118

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advanced payments made by customers while the underlying
goods are yet to be delivered.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 related to carried-forward contract liabilities.

6 WA
(b) EHNEBHNEXREF

(0)

AREMANABEIEELAE
B e R - e R S
CES-OR

/Tj[:I:In,JE1$ﬁEWL,\EIJLI&A
TRETEZE2022F & 20214
NRANBLFEEREELEES
HEEHOUWA -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARMBF T
Revenue recognised that was FTAFEHE KB B
included in the contract liabilities — #9E #EFAYA
balance at the beginning of
the year
Advanced payments from RKERPZENRIE
customers 4,955 3,819

Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group applies the practical expedient and does
not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one year
of less.

Assets recognised from incremental costs
to obtain a contract

Contract obtaining costs incurred related to contracts such as
sales commissions with an amortisation period of one year or
less have been expensed as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Raw materials and consumables FT AR M £ & P H 7%
used 305,536 217,658
Subcontracting costs 2B 231,852 248,034
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1B E @ F|HZ (#/7£8) 69,608 62,853
Transportation expenses RiBHZ 15,217 16,690
Utilities NGEE S S 4,708 3,768
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - = MR EITE
equipment (Note 15) (Hia£15) 10,936 8,897
Depreciation of investment WEMEIRE (it 16)
properties (Note 16) 377 298
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#E (M 17)
(Note 17) 697 652
Amortisation and depreciation of FRAEEESRBERINE
right-of-use assets (Note 18) (H1at 18) 2,838 3,915
Taxes and surcharges i T8 MBS hn & 2,848 2,096
Travelling expenses ERAX 1,131 1,010
Operating lease expenses on RHEEEHERS
short-term leases 3,021 1,944
Business entertainment expenses EBBERX 1,697 884
Sample inspection and express fees 1 g E N Rk & 3,007 2,632
Advertising and promotion expenses & &5 N #t & B 2 10,245 4,783
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BXRD 37 B
— Annual audit service — FEEBZR 1,680 1,500
Statutory audit fees EEEZER 165 101
Other service fees Hi s & 4,005 3,591
Office expenses WA 1,994 1,291
Insurance expenses REFZ 228 194
Sales commission HERE 1,050 976
Others HAh 1,949 1,886
674,789 585,653
FithZERAER D B CEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

8 EBE®AMAX

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBFIT

Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - FHaMEA 54,906 51,444

Pension costs (Note a) BIKERA (K ita) 3,483 2,971
Housing funds, medical insurances £FEAES - BERER R
and other social insurances Efhrt iR (Aab)

(Note b) 6,732 5,634

Other employee benefits E g 8EF 4,487 2,804

69,608 62,853

Note a:  As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC contribute to state-sponsored retirement plans for
their employees. The employees contribute approximately 8% of their basic
salaries, while the subsidiaries contribute approximately 13-14% of the
basic salaries of their respective employees and have no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, no forfeited contributions were utilised by
the Group to reduce its contributions for the current year (2021: nil).

Note b:  Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plans. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on approximately 25.4% of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceilings. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in each period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e KRR ME @E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(a) Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group include no
(2021: 1) director 2022 whose emolument is reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 35. The emoluments payable to the
remaining 5 (2021: 4) individuals are as follows:

8 EEEANAXZw
(a) AN RS EHEA L

HZE2022F12A31HLEFE -
2022 AREBO AN S FHMA
TIWE2021F  —f)EE - H
HE SRS 2T A -
FE (A E 8 T A7 (2021 4F - IUfiZ) A
TEABEHMAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE Fekia

Wages and bonuses TERIELL 1,428 999
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 687 635
Pension costs RIRE AR 47 86

Housing funds, medical insurances FEATE® - BERE X
and other social insurances H bt 2R 109 290
2,271 2,010

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

ZEFWEAT SRELERA

Number of individuals
A8
Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) e E (CABTYIR)
Nil — HK$600,000 Z % 6,00,00078 T 5 4

WtHERERAT —T-FF® /]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

9 OTHER INCOME 9 Hihlzm

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Rental income HeWam 1,529 1,379
Government grants (/) BUS BN () 3,662 8,319
Others HAt 1,173 1,173
6,364 10,871
i Government grants were mainly unconditional government subsidies received i BB EZEASEY DR EEBRNT
by the Group from relevant government bodies. W 2 EIRM BN E T -
10 OTHER GAINS 10 Hfthlzs

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE - WEREHER
plant and equipment — net — 55 (109) (8)
Gains on disposal of right-of-use & FAEE E 2 Wk —F 5
assets — net 32 6
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SME Uz, (E518) F 58 13,660 (4,328)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on INEREAIB K N FE (B51B)
foreign exchange forward e 58
contracts (10,040) 7,726
Net fair value gains on funds E2 RNV EWGRF5E 1,560 -
Net fair value gains on fixed cross- & E 2 X & ¥ [E K8 8 2
currency exchange rate swap N EWEFE 3,708 -
Donation expenses BRHEX (150) (780)
Others HA, (661) (460)
8,000 2,156

122 KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

11 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 11 W sE R H A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Finance income B # Uk &
Interest income A B 2 1,925 491
Finance costs B3 R AR
Interest expenses on borrowings &5 F B X (3,364) (491)
Interest expenses on lease
liabilities HEAEMBRX (83) (200)
(3.,447) (691)
Net finance costs B 745 X 7 S B8 (1,522) (200)

WtHERERAT T FFEH®R /0



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

12 SUBSIDIARIES

124

12

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and as at
the date of issue of these financial statements are set out below.
Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital that are held
directly by the Group, and the proportion of ownership interests
held equals the voting rights held by the Group.

Place and date
of incorporation/

L= PN

AREBR2022F %2021F12 A31H
MREHGZETHRRBPZHER
RIRTXHS - BB AEHAEI KB
NAlZBABAEBEZREE N
BrAEEEZLAISANAERR
B2RERE-

Attributable equity interest

Names of the subsidiaries establishTent Issued capital of the Group Principal activities/place of operation
AR
KEARAR RLBER A RESTS BRRAEERARE TERE/LE4E
31 December
128318
2022 2021
wnE WE
Kwung's Investments Limited BV UsD1 100.00% 100.00%  Intermediate holding company
‘ 15 November 2018
REREBRRAR ABRUES 157 100.00% 10000% HEERLT
20185114158
Kwung's Wisdom (Hongkong) Co,  Hong Kong HKS$1 100.00% 100.00%  Intermediate holding company
Limited 27 November 2018
BUER(BR)BRAT BR &7 100.00% 10000% FEBRAT
018117278
Ningbo Kwung's PRC RMB91,000,000 100.00% 100.00%  Design, manufacture and processing; Wholesale
4 January 1999 and retail company
EjiEt hE ARH91,000,0007C 100.00% 10000% it HERMIGE: HERTELT
199941 F4H
Ningbo Koman Import and export ~ PRC RIMB1,500,000 100.00% 100.00%  Import or export of self-employed or agent goods
Co., Ltd. 16 August 2012 and technology
ERFTEELNARLR hE ARH1,500,0007 100.00% 10000% ERAREERRRMERLD
012584168
Ningbo Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd.  PRC RIB1,000,000 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
11 August 2014 handicrafts \
EREERREERR hE ABRH1,0000007T 100.00% 10000% REER FIERZHERTE
BRAE 014587118
Neobee Australia Pty Limited Australia AUD240,000 80.00% 80.00% Trading Company
29 June, 2017
Neobee Australia Pty Limited 2 240,000 7T 80.00% 80.00% ZFAd
017564298
Shaoxing Keyuan Arts and Crafts PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100.00% Design, manufacture and processing of wax
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) 17 September 2018 products
RETTRIERARAA (Hi1) & AR 200000007 - 10000% BHERLF HERMT

20184597178

KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

12 Hi B 2 =)

Attributable equity interest

Names of the subsidiaries establish?ent Issued capital of the Group Principal activities/place of operation
HREL
HEARER RIBERAH BRTRA ERRRERRTER ITEE/HEnY
31 December
128318
2022 2021
NE 0M1F
Ningbo Fenyuan Aromatherapy PRC RIMB1,000,000 100.00% 100.00% Design, manufacture and processing of wax
Products Co., Ltd. 7 January 2019 . products, metal products and glass products
ERAGRERRERAT HE ARE1,0000007 100.00% 10000% %85 SEERRERER,EG  BERN
0191878 I
Ningbo Wanweipulian Technology ~ PRC RIMB5,000,000 - 100.00%  Inspection and testing services
(o, Ltd. (Note 1) 30 June 2020
ERENEBNRERAT (1) HE ARH5,000000 - 100.00% iR AR
2020E6£30H
Wuhu Keman Crafts Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household items,
17 September 2021 handicrafts
ERSETHOERAT ol AE%10,000,0007C 100.00% 10000% #ERZEXEEE FIEq
20219178
Hangzhou Aromage Homeware Co,,  PRC RMB500,000 - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household items,
‘ Ltd. (Note 1) 21 May 2019 ) handicrafts
MNEERRFERRERAR  HE AEH500,00070 - 10000% HERTEFEER FIZM
i3l 01955821 R
Beiling Aromage Homeware Co,, Ltd.  PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
6 November 2019 handicrafts
IREERRZERD Gl ARES00,0007 100.00% 10000% HERTEZEER FIZm
BRAT 2019% 11768
Wuxi Aromage Homeware Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
22 November 2019 handicrafts
EREERRFERD HE ARHS500,0007T 100.00% 10000% HERTEXEER FIZm
ER2A 01911508
Taizhou Aromage Homeware Co, Ltd. PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household items,
16 December 2019 handicrafts
ANEERRFERR HE AEH500,0007T 100.00% 10000% HERTEFEER FIZM
ERAR 2019128168
Suzhou Aromage Homeware Co, Ltd.  PRC RMBS500,000 - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household items,
(Note 1) 5 June 2020 ’ handicrqfts
HHEERRXERRARLR  TE ARES500,0007C - 10000% HERTEREER FIZm
(BsE1) 2020%675H
Jinhua Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd.  PRC RMB500,000 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
22 June 2020 handicrafts
SERERRFERR HE ARHS500,0007T 100.00% 10000% HERTEXEER FIZm
ER2A 2000567228

Rt ZRERD A

RO CFEFR

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

12

126

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

12 M8 2 7] ()

Attributable equity interest

Names of the subsidiaries establishgent Issued capital of the Group Principal activities/place of operation
AL
il ekt RUBHRAH BRIRE BENERERAER TEED/EEnE
31 December
124318
2022 2021
W0E W1
Shanghai Yukeyuriang Homeware Co., PRC RIMB500,000 - 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
Ltd. (Note 1) 130ct 2020 handicrafts
LEPENEZRRRERLAR  hE ARH500,0007T - 10000% HERZEFEER FIZm
(Mizt1) 2020F10A 138
Nanjing Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd. PRC RMB500,000 - 100.00% Wholesale and retail of household items,
(l\lotej) 4 December 2020 ) handicrafts
ERAERRZERAMARLA  1H ARE5000007C - 10000% HERTEXEER FI€m
(Hzk1) 2020F 12848
Chongging Aromage Homeware Co.,  PRC RMB500,000 - 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
Ltd. (Note 1) 11 December 2020 ) handicrqfts
EREERRZERRARLA  HE ABRH#500,0007 - 10000% HERTEREER FI€m
(Hzk1) 00F12811A
Jiaxing Corner Household Products Co., PRC - 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
[td. 8 October 2021 handicrafts
FERRARKERRARLA 1A - 100.00% 10000% HERTEXEER FI1Em
201%10A8R
Wuhan Aromatherapy Times Household PRC - 100.00% 100.00%  Wholesale and retail of household items,
Products Co,, Ltd. 14 January 2021 handicrafts
RERERAZERAMARLA  1H - 100.00% 10000% HERTEXEER FI€m
01 F17 148
Anhui Fenyuan Aromatic Technology ~ PRC RIB30,200,000 100.00% - Design, manufacture and processing of wax
(o, Ltd. (Note 2) 11 January 2022 , products
RESEREHRARRA (Wi2) hE ABR%30,200,0007C 100.00% - Ft HERNISRR
W0F1ANE
Herbay Inc. (Note 3) Us - 100.00% - Wholesale and retal of household items,
8 February 2022 handicrafts
Herbay Inc. (H13£3) %8 - 100.00% - REREEZEEE F1En
202462188
Note 1 Shaoxing Keyuan Arts and Crafts Co.,Ltd., Ningbo Wanweipulian Technology a1 %A ﬁﬁfﬁléﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ? CEREWY
Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., Suzhou Aromage BRI ERAR MNBERRKRER®
Homeware Co., Ltd., Shanghai Yukeyuxiang Homeware Co., Ltd., Nanjing ARAF - HwMEBRARERRARA
Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd., Chongging Aromage Homeware Co., Ltd. B EEPEPEREARERIA B
were closed in 2022. REERAREARERAALEERE
HRREBMARRFN2022FFHEH -
Note 2 Anhui Fenyuan Aromatic Technology Co., Ltd. was established in the PRC a2 ZBES &S BB RERA R R 2022 F {F
in 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kwung’s Wisdom (Hongkong) Co., RAEEER(EB)BRATNZENELR
Limited. AR BT -
Note 3 Herbay Inc. was established in the US in 2022 as a wholly owned subsidiary MizE3 Herbay Inc. 742022 F{EARBHHITEBR R

of Kwung’s Investments Limited.

KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022

B2 EMBRRNERMKT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amounts of income tax expense charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent:

13 Fr8HiB

FFARABRERZMBRAX S RIE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Current income tax BNEAFT{S FX
— PRC corporate income tax — B EFTE R 2,075 4,252
- Hong Kong profits tax —BABRE 1,209 2,703
Deferred income tax (Note 31) EIEPTISTR (AT 3£ 31) 452 122
Income tax expense FriSfif X 3,736 7,077

(a) Cayman Island income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

(b) British Virgin Islands income tax

Under the current laws of the British Virgin Islands, entities
incorporated in British Virgin Islands are not subject to tax on
their income or capital gains.

(c) Hong Kong profits tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Hong Kong has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31 December 2022, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The statutory
tax rate was 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022.

(a) IEHEFREH

ARAB/REBEAEFEREER
MEeERBEMAINERREER
RA AL EREHME SR
EMEH -

(b) RBEZESHEHR

RERBELESHALEZ N
RERABEEMKRILIZERE
AR EN BN HRHE -

() BEEREH

AEERREELLEELNAE
HREBECRBRITEEZ MER
B0 LATEEE 22022 F 12 A 31
BUEFEMEREEFNAMERBM
RE - HE2022F12A31 81k
FEEEMER165% °

WtERERAT T FFH )/



For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the years, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof. The statutory tax rate was 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Ningbo Kwung’s was qualified as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) since 2008 and renewed
its qualification in December 2020. It is subject to a reduced
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to
December 2023 according to the applicable tax preference
applicable to the HNTE.

According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated
by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was effective
from 2018, during the period from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2023, enterprises engaging in research
and development activities are entitled to claim 200% of
their research and development expenses incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable
profits for that year (“Super deduction for research and
development expense”), while the deduction rate was
175% before then. The Group has made its best estimate for
the Super Deduction for R&D expenses to be claimed for the
Group’s entities in ascertaining assessable profits during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

In addition, pursuant to the Announcement on Increasing the
Pre-tax Deductions in Support of Technological Innovation
(Announcement [2022] No. 28) issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Taxation Administration and the Ministry
of Science and Technology, during the period from 1 October
2022 to 31 December 2022, the cost of newly purchased
equipment can be fully deducted against taxable profit in
2022, and entitled to additional pre-tax deduction at 100%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13 FiI8BiM W

(d) PRC corporate income tax (Continued)

(d) FEITEFBHR @

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Profit before income tax B P15 854 A 71 56,374 56,115
Tax calculated at applicable RERTEMRERTE25%
corporate income tax rate of 25% & EHIFIE 14,094 14,029
Tax effects of: AT SIERE 2 -
— Expenses not deductible for — BRI IE T E S AR
taxation purposes )3 72 93
— Income not subject to — BRSO A
income tax (1,703) -
— Preferential income tax rate —EAERBEAN
applied in domestic entities BEMAEHH X (4,597) (4,243)
— Different HK rate impact —TRBEAHENTE (846) (2,211)
— Super deduction for research — e 2 BEEE N
and development expenses (2,935) (2,295)
— Additional deduction — R M@ INET B
for equipment (1,392) -
— Deductible tax losses and — KRBTGS
temporary differences not BEAEMFIEA
recognised for deferred EERERFER
income tax assets 1,043 1,704
Income tax expense Fr 5% 5 £ 3,736 7,077
WtERERAT —Bo—FFH /29



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2022 is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issued during the
period.

14 BREF

(a)

BEREXRER

HE2022F12A831BILFEE
BEARBFIZBRAEQIREE A
JE 47 535 ) B DA B 35 17 338 A% on kE
FHHETHE -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBF T
Profit attributable to owners of the ~ ZAQ Rl A A FE1G % 7
Company (RMB’000) (AR®ETFT) 52,605 49,000
Weighted average number of EETEBERMINETS
ordinary shares in issue HAFRIIR)
(expressed in thousand) 405,042 405,042
Basic earnings per share for profit 7R BB A K15 3% FIHY
attributable to the owners of the FREKREF
Company (expressed in RMB (HBRARBERT)
per share) 13.0 cents 12.1 cents

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted
earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per share
as there were no dilutive shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Transportation Electronic Leasehold  Assets under
Buildings equipment equipment Machinery Furniture  improvements  construction Total
g BaRM BTk 1h B8 BEEE kEEE ait

RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMIn  ARBTR  ARRTR  AR®Tx  ARBTR  ARMTR

Asat 1 January 2022 R2022%1R1R

Cost s 15,861 3,561 2115 19,872 2,866 28,880 2290 76,045
Accumulated SR

depreciation (4,925) (1,745) (1,727) (6,214) (1,617) (13.802) - (30,030)
Net book value FHEE 10,936 1,816 988 13,658 1,249 15,078 2290 46,015
Year ended BZnE128318

31 December 202 LEE
Opening net book value & F(E 10,936 1816 98 13,658 1,49 15,078 2290 46,015
Additions HE - 120 2,146 2413 21 9,369 4,69 19,025
Transfers gz - = = 4,206 = = (4,200) =
Disposals HE (25) (1) (582) (610) (108) - - (1,326)
Depreciation (lote 7).~ & (W7 (642) (405) (299) (1,830) (364) (7.39) - (10.936)
Closing net book value  EREEFE 10,269 1530 253 17837 1,058 17,051 2,780 52,778

Asat31December  R2022£12 318

222
Cost s 15,502 3,659 3317 22,161 2301 38,249 2,780 87,969
Accumulated SR

depreciation (5.233) (2,129) (1,064) (4,32) (1,83) (21,19) = (35,191)
Net book value EmFE 10,269 1,530 2253 17,831 1,058 17,051 2,780 52,778

WU ERERAT —B-—FFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 % - BERRE@®
(Continued)
Transportation Electronic Leasehold ~ Assets under
Buildings equipment equipment Machinery Fumiture  improvements  construction Total
= EhTE ETHE B & i3 kEEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBIT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn ARETR
Asat1January 2021 202151818
Cost i 20362 3307 2562 13,240 2,191 2,053 4,156 67,961
Accumulated ZifTE
depreciation (5,488) (1,383) (1,540) (4712) (1359) 8012) - (22494
Net book value EEEE 14874 2014 1022 8528 832 14,041 4,15 45467
Year ended BEUNENA3MA
31 December2021  LEE
Opening net book value EIEEF(E 14874 2014 100 8528 83) 14,041 415 15,467
Additions g - 179 m 1,495 675 6827 300 12,669
Transfers g2 (3,216) - - 5,137 - - (5,137) (3216)
Disposals ik - (1) il . - - ) ]
Depreciation oz /) E(W7) m (376) (249) (1502 (259 (5790) - (8897)
Closing net book value  ERE (A 10936 1816 98 13658 1,249 15,078 209 46,015
Asat31December ~ R2021£12A318
W1
Cost i 15,861 3,561 2715 19872 2,866 28,880 229 76,045
Accumulated ZifE
depreciation (4.925) (1,745) (1.721) (6:214) (1617) (13802) - (30,030)
Net book value EERE 10936 1816 98 13658 1,249 15,078 2290 46,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16

(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment was charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

15 Y% - BMERRE @

ME - BERERBZIECREGRE
@R E R R IR T

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREF T

Cost of sales HER AR 6,425 4,407
Administrative expenses TBFAX 2,722 2,239
Research and development expenses i % 7 X2 731 662
Selling expenses HEMX 1,058 1,589
10,936 8,897

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, assets under construction
mainly represented the machinery costs of Ningbo Fenyuan

Aromatherapy Products Co., Ltd.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are located in the PRC. The movement of
investment properties is analysed as follows:

16

2022 F K2021F12 8318 £ &
EETBEREESFSETEZLRARA

R AR A -
BREW=

BREMEURTE -REMXZED

DT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETIT

Cost AR 11,905 11,905

Accumulated depreciation 2t e (4,369) (3,992)

Net book value FREFE 7,536 7,913

Opening net book value FYREFEE 7,913 4,995
Transfer from owner-occupied B¥XraRAmEEE

property - 3,216

Depreciation (Note 7) e Kt 7) (377) (298)

Closing net book value FARE@FE 7,536 7,913

WtHERERAT T FEFEH /95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December
2022 approximates their net book value. The fair value is
estimated by management. The valuations are derived using
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method is based
on comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted.

Lease rental income relating to the lease of investment properties
has been included in the Consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

16 REYE @w)

R2022F 12 A31 HWREWEZ AT
BEEERmFEMRL A FERER
Bt - BEFHAEELEEASE - B
BUSEADERBEHBEZDERES
MRS EMA R EEETE
LEES o

HRENErBEEH 2 BERS I
HEHABABRREMRERRE
mF -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

Rental income He W 1,529 1,379

Depreciation of investment properties was charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

REMEFECRGABRakEME
EU SRR ¢

Year ended 31 December
BE12831BLEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBEF T

Administrative expenses THFX 377 298
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At 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2022

Opening net book value
Additions
Amortisation (Note 7)

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

At 1 January 2021
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2021

Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Amortisation (Note 7)

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2021
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

MR2022F1H1H8
BN
Rty

fREFE

HZE2022%F12A31H
IEEE

FYEREFE

NE

B (aE7)

FAREEFE

720229 12A31H
BN
R

FRmEFE

R2021F1 818
BN
RETHEH

AR FE

HZE2021%12A831H
LEEFEE

FYREFE

NE

HeE

s (HaE7)

FRIEEFE
M2021%F12A31H
BN

RET#H

FRmEFE

Patent right Software
EFE Loges
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREF T
1,120 6,927
(965) (2,711)

155 4,216

155 4,216

2 921
(55) (642)

102 4,495
1,122 7,849
(1,020) (3,354)
102 4,495
1,115 6,674
(904) (2,122)

211 4,552

211 4,552

5 295

- (40)

61) (591)

155 4,216
1,120 6,927
(965) (2,711)

155 4,216

Wi ZERERD A

Total

att
RMB’000
AREFIT

8,047
(3,676)

4,371

4,371
923
(697)

4,597

8,971
(4,374)

4,597

7,789
(3,026)

4,763

4,763
300
(40)
(652)

4,371

8,047
(3,676)

4,371

—ECCFER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR M|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

17 BEEE @

BVAESHCNEABRakEME
EERAKNT

follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12831BLEE
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBEFIT
Administrative expenses THRFX 697 652

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18 EHEEE

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTTT
Land use rights + Hb sk A 36,898 7,265
Properties LS 199 2,547
37,097 9,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(1) Land use rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments for land located in the PRC and the
lease term is 50 years. The net book amount of land use right
is analysed as follows:

18 FHEEE W)

(1) L ibfE A&

REEH T FAEREIEA
RS mEMEEREN
o MBEHRASOF - T FE B
HRESFESTNT

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARMBTF T
Cost (DN 40,936 10,807
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (4,038) (3,542)
Net book value BREFE 36,898 7,265
Opening net book value FYIRmFE 7,265 7,511
Additions NE 30,130 -
Amortisation charges (Note 7) BIHBR (Wt 7) (497) (246)
Closing net book value FAREMFE 36,898 7,265

Amortisation of right-of-use assets, with the amount
of RMB246,000(2021: RMB246,000) was charged to
administrative expenses. Amortisation of right-of-use assets,
with the amount of RMB251,000(2021:nil) was capitalised to

Property, Plant and Equipment.

FREEE®H ARK246,0007T
(202145 : AR#246,0007T) B 1T
ANk - FHEESEHREARE
251,0007C (20214F : ) RAWE - B =

REHER -

Rt ZRERD A

—ECCFFHK 5/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)
(2) Properties

The Group leases properties for own use. Information about
leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below:

18 FHEEE w)

(2) M=

AEEHEMEDEER AR
AEBEEREBEANEEENZ

FIEAT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 & 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Cost P AR 6,700 7,170
Accumulated depreciation R E (6,501) (4,623)
Net book value IREFE 199 2,547
Opening net book value FYIERMEFE 2,547 5,517
Addition NE 506 803
Disposals HE (262) (104)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WEERKZE7) (2,592) (3,669)
Closing net book value FAREMFE 199 2,547

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statements of
cash flows contain the following amounts relating to leases:

meBakHEtE2EKaER LR
ERERERBBEATEHEE

MIE R

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Depreciation and amortisation TRAREENEK
charges of right-of-use assets BiEER 2,592 3,669
Interest paid [=ENFES) 83 200
Expenses relating to low value of  KEEREPHEE
short term leases B X 3,021 1,944
The cash outflows for leases as HEERKETEN
operating activities Bam 3,021 1,944
The cash outflows for leases as HEERME RN
financing activities Remd 2,881 3,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 IZ¥ERIE o2& R T A

The Group holds the following financial instruments: REEBEATERIA
As at 31 December
MW12A318
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARMT AREEF T
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHENAR 2
TR
Trade receivables B 5 IR 21 120,661 146,729
Other receivables (excluding recoverable £ fth & U 7B
value added tax) (AT YR [a] $E(E
BRo1) 22 2,651 3,240
Cash and cash in bank Be RRITHES 25 143,221 199,742
Other current assets HEMmehEE 24 105,000 7,013
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABR
profit or loss L EmEE 23 103,975 2,408
475,508 359,132
Financial liabilities TRAE
Liabilities at amortised cost: REERA 2 BE
Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 R H A ER
staff salaries and welfare payables and S (ENBE
accrued taxes other than income tax) FHERER &
FERTRIE (FT15
BRI BR SN 28 77,155 69,303
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 201 2,785
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ ZAFEF AR
profit or loss mZemARE 23 4,972 278
82,328 72,366

WtHERERAT —T--FF£H® /59



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

20 INVENTORIES 20 7 &
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Raw materials B 32,935 44,632
Work in progress F K Sh 5,558 6,760
Finished goods BURK M 27,656 39,114
Provision for impairment of GERBEREE
inventories (88) (867)
66,061 89,639

21

140

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB305,536,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB217,658,000).

HE2022F 12831 HILFE  WHER
AR TR AGEEEREME2EAE
WHRATEEXRAR] TFEEXANAEA
R #305,536,0007T (20214 : AR
217,658,0007T) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 B 5 EWFIE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Trade receivables due from third BEWWE =5 2 E 5 EWFIE
parties 124,133 150,854
Less: Allowance for impairment of & : & 5 B FUBR(E B &
trade receivables (3.472) (4,125)
Trade receivables — net BESEWRE-FEE 120,661 146,729
Trade receivables all arise from sales of goods. BoRWFIEHREHEEE D °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables before provision were denominated in the
following currencies:

usb =
RMB® AR #EO

(i) As at 31 December 2022, RMB15,047,311 was due from overseas clients who
made the payment via Cross-border Interbank Payment System.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

Within 30 days 30HR

Over 30 days and within 180 days #8330 H =180 H K
Over 180 days and within one year #8180 HE 1F K
Over one year and within two years i@ 1FE2FER

Over two years and within HE2EFEIFN
three years
Over three years FEIA 3 F

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value of trade
receivables approximated their carrying amounts. Sales of products
are received in accordance with the terms of the relevant sales
agreements, and due for payment upon the issuance of invoice.

MR2022F K2021F12A31H » R E
BRESEWRBZERMEZAT
EMEHE

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
102,458 107,529
21,675 43,325
124,133 150,854

() 20225128318 - AR¥15,047311 7T
RIEWOBINE F 5B GE BB HRITHEZ M
REA)

R2022F K2021F 128318 =R
ZEOHMNE S EWBFIENRER ST
N

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
37,295 48,710
80,501 94,201
1,964 4,188
2,817 2,397
1,556 755
= 603
124,133 150,854

R2022F K2021F 12831885
JEWFHEAFEREREMMERL - E
o 5 E AR 15 AR B8 5 5 1w IR AR
WA H BB FEER AT o

WU ERERAT —B-—FFRH



For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

The Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the assets. The expected loss rates
are based on the payment profiles of sales over past years and
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified the factors such as GDP of the countries in which
it sells its goods to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors. At every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did
not hold any collateral as security over these debtors.

Within 30 days 30HA

Over 30 days and within 180 days #8330 HZ=180H K
Over 180 days and within one year @180 HE 1F K
Over one year and within two years #2i@1FE2FER
Over two years HRiE 2 F

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At the beginning of the year REF
Provision for impairment VERIERE L]

Written off during the year F A EE
At the end of the year RER
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AEEEREBYBREERFE N
AR E HERKEEEY SR
REBTHERAEPFTEPEEE B
HEEXEDERBEFEZHENK
HELZBBAKEZBEESEE
BE -BREBEXRDNEARIREE
Y ERFPHEBRNREZENNE
BREERZZENRAIEEER - &K
SEEBNZEREZ fIMELEE
mATEBRR ZEANEERE AR AN
FAZ Bt BIEZSRAEZENRTEH
HERHEELEEER NERELE -
EERBELENEREEFHAAESE
HEZEESEETON R2022F &
2021512 A31H AEBEWEEET
IR R IEAZ SRR Z KT -

As at 31 December

M®12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
ECL Rate ECL Rate
FEHEE EHEE
EBEE EEE
0.08% 0.17%
0.18% 0.36%
14.33% 24.40%
51.83% 55.17%
100.00% 100.00%

BHRWBRREREBEEE T

As at 31 December

M12H831H

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
(4,125) (1,784)
417) (2,341)

1,070 -
(3,472) (4,125)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 ANRIE  -RERHME

RECEIVABLES W\
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Prepayments TERTRIE
— Advances to suppliers — A EE K 10,468 16,566
— Prepaid income tax —TERTFR SR 3,773 -
— Prepaid value-added tax —JETIEER 1,005 1,347
Subtotal NEE 15,246 17,913
Other receivables H b W 38
— Deposits —Ze 926 2,103
— Advances to employees —[A{E B #K 1,017 815
— Recoverable value-added tax — Al e R EF 3,670 11,630
— Amounts due from related — JE Uk BE B 75 X TE (B 52 34(d))
parties (Note 34(d)) 462 145
— Others —EAh 246 177
Subtotal INEF 6,321 14,870
Total BET 21,567 32,783
Less: Allowance for impairment of  J& = £ th & U RUE R (B B B
other receivables (217) (325)
21,350 32,458
WtHERERAT —To-FF® 45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 ARIE - RERHME
RECEIVABLES (continued) U FR I8 (@)

Movements in the provision for impairment of other receivables Hith e IBREREOEFHNT -
are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

At the beginning of the year REH] (325) (212)
Reversal of/(provision for) BB E (B

impairment 63 (113)

Written off during the year F M 45 -

At the end of the year RER (217) (325)

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR 23 BRAFEHITAEZ ¢/

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE (8E)
Financial assets TRMEE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARMBF T
Funds (Note a) S (Bita) 101,560 -
Wealth management products PR ITRIT BV ER
issued by commercial banks 1,650 -
RMB:USD fixed-fixed cross-currency A R#E 35, TEE X XN EH#
exchange rate swap i 5 HY 765 -
Foreign currency forwards HNEER BB S 4D - 2,408
103,975 2,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT

24

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

Financial liabilities ctHmas
As at 31 December
MH12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTIT
Foreign currency forwards (Note b) SMNEIRERE 49 (ffatb) (4,656)
USD:RMB fixed-fixed cross-currency 37T H A R EE X X g
exchange rate swap i 2 47 Hf (316) (278)
(4,972) (278)

Note a:  During 2022, the Group subscribed to the funds in batches with the total
principal amount of RMB100,000,000. As at 31 December 2022, the
estimated market value of the fund is RMB101,560,368.

Note b: As at 31 December 2022, the Group entered into a number of foreign
currency forward agreements with commercial banks to hedge the foreign
exchange exposure.

For information about the methods used in determining fair value,
please refer to Note 3.3.

Mata: H2022F  AEBESMRBRBEES - A&
@58 A AR 100,000,0007T ° 722022
FI12A318 - ELEAmEAARE
101,560,368 T °

Kiatb: 720229 12 A31H » AEE B ERT
IS E FONSREE QLA RINE R B -

EHBREERAFEZHEZER
I EEER

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 24 Hit R B EE
As at 31 December
R12A318
2022 2021
2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Fixed deposits TE H 17 3 105,000 -
Fixed income wealth management [& 7 U5 2 32 81 & @
products - 7,013
105,000 7,013

W= AR A —B-—gFH /45



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

25 CASH AND CASH IN BANK 25 HeRBTHRS
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Cash on hand FERE 15 18
Cash in banks® IRITI|RE0 142,256 199,264
Cash in other financial institutions R E {th B 75 BRI € 950 460
143,221 199,742
(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Cash in banks contains RMB15,331,597 (i) R2022F 202149128318 81738
and RMB32,138,134 restricted cash deposits, respectively. AR BREARKE15331,597 T R AR

32,138,134 TR FIRESF K °

The carrying amounts of cash and cash in bank are denominated ReRBTRSNETEN TG
in the following currencies: EIRER

As at 31 December

R12A318
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARMBFT
RMB AR 59,856 50,741
usb ETT 83,170 128,914
HKD BT 195 20,087
143,221 199,742
All cash at bank are deposits with original maturity within 3 FrEHRITREHARE MR A3 E A
months. The Group earns interest on cash at bank at floating W27 o NEBEE F 2022 F %2021
bank deposit rates ranged from 0.0001% to 2.5% and 0.0001% F12A31BIEFED NIRRT ZENTF
to 1.30% during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 FE A F0.0001% £ 2.5% % 0.0001%
respectively. £1.30% BEURTTHESHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

AAFDZA2018F 11 B13BEHSE
Bk - Rz BE - SAER
7K £380,0008 7T - FAREI{E0.001 5

On 13 November 2018, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. At the date of incorporation, the authorised share
capital was HKD380,000 at par value of HKD0.001.

ﬁ o
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: BEEITRFEEBEK:
Equivalent
Number of Nominal nominal
ordinary value value Share
shares of shares of shares premium
ZER RORE RORE
g BE BESE IR 135 E
HKD RMB RMB’000
BETT AR ARETFT
At 31 December 2022 and 720224 12 A31H
31 December 2021 K2021 4
12A31H 405,042,000 405,042 358,767 249,653
Capital Statutory Translation  Total other
reserves reserves  differences reserves
Hts
EXRFEE EERE REEZH RIBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE
As at 1 January 2022 7"2022F1H818 (72,629) 46,481 - (26,148)
Exchange differences on BINEBRE 2
translation of foreign & i =R
operations - - 97 97
Appropriation to statutory B A EHE
reserves - 5,205 - 5,205
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H (72,629) 51,686 97 (20,846)
As at 1 January 2021 ®2021%F1H1H (72,629) 42,780 2 (29,847)
Exchange differences on RINETGIRE
translation of foreign ME W
operations - - (2) )
Appropriation to statutory ¥ ZEE T R E
reserves - 3,701 - 3,701
As at 31 December 2021 42021F12H31H (72,629) 46,481 - (26,148)
RtHZRAERDE —BoFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 ESREMENRE

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREET T
Trade payables due to third parties BT E =75 2 & 5 EISHIAE 70,001 63,276
Other payables H fth FE A R IE 7,154 6,027
Staff salaries and welfare payables — JEEE 8 5 & K& 48 7 5,264 6,977
Accrued taxes other than income tax JFEETTIB (FRSBIRR 1) 1,806 1,788
84,225 78,068

(@) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all trade and other
payables of the Group were non-interest bearing.

(b) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
majority of the Group’s trade and other payables were
denominated in RMB.

(c) Ageing analysis of trade payables to third parties and related
parties based on invoice date at the respective year end dates
was as follows:

(@) F20224F & 2021F12A31H8 -
KEBMEE S NEMENFIEAE
BRB .

(b) EHZE2022% &2021F12A31H
FHFEE AEBARLESGNMNE
o EM RIES IR AREEE -

O MREFERZBEBRBEZEZHHE
NE=ZD LB 2B S EMNK
TR DATA0T

As at 31 December

R12A318
2022 2021
2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Within one year 1FLAN 69,533 62,928
Over one year and within two years fBiB1FE2F R 339 297
Over two years B2 129 51
70,001 63,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRMME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

29 BORROWINGS 29 &
As at 31 December
M®12H318
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFT
Bank loans — unsecured IRITE R —EIF 115,000 10,000
Bank loans — secured (i) IRITE R — B ) 20,000 70,000
135,000 80,000
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings were repayable M2022F 12 A31 0 - AEBEREEERE
as follows: ZIEEMT
As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFIT
Within one year —FR 135,000 80,000
()  The secured bank loans were related to the bank acceptance () BEMBETEFHE-—FE IR
bills discounted with a local bank. As at 31 December 2022, TR MRITEALEERB - »X
the Group pledged RMB5,861,320 in the bank for the 202212 A31H » "EEFME
purpose of discounting of bank acceptance bills. BITER AL EBERRTEFARE
5,861,3207T °

WtHERERAT —T--FF£® /49



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

30 LEASE LIABILITIES

30 HEERE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Minimum lease payments due I E SR E T
— Within 1 year —-R1FER 204 2,620
- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2%F - 227
— Between 2 and 5 years —2&E5%F - 21
204 2,868
Less: Future finance charges W RREEE A (3) (83)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEBRE 201 2,785
Minimum lease payments due B EA KA E TR
— Within 1 year —R1FER 201 2,544
- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2%F - 220
- Between 2 and 5 years —2E5%F - 21
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 201 2,785

The Group leases warehouses, factory workshops and shopping
mall counters. These lease liabilities were measured at net present
value of the lease payments to be paid during the lease terms.

Lease liabilities were discounted at incremental borrowing rate.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liabilities was 4.75%.

For the total cash outflows for leases including payments of lease

liabilities and payments of interest expenses on leases are disclosed
in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31 EEHRIEEERERE

Deferred tax assets EEBEBEEE
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET T ARETIT
The balance comprises temporary #8283 3EA N S HEML AT

differences attributable to: RFMEZ=%E
Allowance on doubtful debts RIREMF 249 492
Accrued expenses TEIRFAX 314 110
Lease liabilities HEARE - 52
Financial assets and liabilities at BEAFEFABGZZ S/

FVPL BEREE 687 -
Tax losses HIEE 1B 55 100
Total deferred tax assets FIERIEE ERE 1,305 754
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities R IR 85 4R TE K SH IR A FY

pursuant to set-off provisions HaE (i) (1,233) (366)
Net deferred tax assets FIERIEE EFE 72 388

W= AR A —B-—FFH /5]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRRKE |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31 EEREBEEERBE@®

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEREBEEE @
Allowance Financial
on assets and
doubtful Accrued liabilities Accrued Lease Tax
debts payroll at FVPL expenses liabilities losses Total
BAYE
FTABEZ
SREE
REERE FEAEM k& BREAX BERE BEER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 R202%1518 492 - - 110 52 100 754

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated ~ (31%) /3t A& BHEK

statement of profit or loss (243) - 687 204 (52) (45) 551
At 31 December 2022 R202%12A318 249 - 687 314 - 55 1,305
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1518 261 342 - 110 1,251 431 2,395

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated ~ (31%) /3 A& BHEK
statement of profit or loss 231 (342) - - (1,199) (331) (1,641)

At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 492 - - 110 52 100 754
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

31 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31 EEBEEERAEE@®

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARET T ARETF T
The balance comprises temporary #5888 55 A & B EEEE
differences attributable to: Bl =28
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB R 1,369 -
Financial assets and liabilities BAVEFAEBZZ €6
at FVPL BENRAE - 320
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 46
Total deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B EEE 1,369 366
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities RIEIE 8598 & K S IR I FY
pursuant to set-off provisions HEE (i) (1,233) (366)
Net deferred tax liabilities EIETIE B EFE 136 -

WtHERERAT —T-FEFH® /55



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R R MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

31

154

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31

(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Financial assets

FEEHREEEREE @

EEHREEE @

and liabilities Property, plant  Right-of-use

at FVPL and equipment assets Total
BATEH
AB#HZ
SREE n¥- BE
LafE &L FHESE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTL AREFT AREFTT AREFTL
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1H1H 320 - 46 366
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated (5t A) /B4 A EHER
statement of profit or loss (320) 1,369 (46) 1,003
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F 128318 - 1,369 - 1,369
As at 1 January 2021 20214118 729 - 1,156 1,885
Credited to the consolidated statement it AkZ & 1Bz %
of profit or loss (409) - (1,110) (1,519)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H 320 - 46 366

Note (i): Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balance and a net
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had tax losses of RMB35,156,000 (2021:
RMB34,183,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as the Directors considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB11,073,000 (2021: RMB6,921,000)
will expire as follow and an amount of RMB24,083,000 (2021:
RMB27,262,000) has no expiry date.

AN B 8 A1 &
2024512 A31H

To be expired by
31 December 2024

31 December 2026
31 December 2027

202612 A31H
2027F 12 A31H

Subtotal INEE
No expiry date 2 e m B B
Unused tax losses KA IEEE

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB10,003,000 (31 December 2021: RMB7,517,000) were not
recognised for the withholding tax (tax rate of 5%) and other
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
RMB 200,054,000 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
RMB150,342,000).

B A B2 B A R K I ER A i A IR 4B
HEAD et E o HEEERE
RIEEFTSREE - 72022912 A 31
A NEEEE ARE35,156,0007T
(20214 AR #34,183,0007T) 2
HEE BRESRARATERRT
AAJREEBAZEHEEE WL EK
EMRAELRBEEE EHh2BA
R #11,073,0007T (20214F : AR ¥
6,921,0007T) BRI TEHERE S
%8 AR ¥24,083,0007T (2021 F : AR
# 27,262,000 7T) I £ & i B 8 -

As at 31 December

M®12A831H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
2,415 2,415
4,506 4,506
4,152 -
11,073 6,921
24,083 27,262
35,156 34,183

MR2022F12A31H  EBEMEFHE
& AR %10,003,0007T (2021412 A
313 : AR#7,517,0007T) I & 5t %
T B 8B A B) A K BE ) UK 2 T AR E R AR
MTEHIR (FRR AB5%) R EMFIE -
2022% 12 A31 8 REHMHWZES X
49/ N R 200,054,000 7T (2021412
A31H : AR¥150,342,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Profit before income tax xBTS LA 4 A 56,374 56,115
Adjustments for: IR
— Amortisation of intangible —BCEEEE(WL17)
assets (Note 17) 697 652
— Depreciation of property, plant ~ —#1%  E MEZEITE
and equipment (Note 15) (H1at15) 10,936 8,897
— Amortisation and depreciation =~ —fFREEE#HERITE
of right-of-use assets (Note 78) (H1a£18) 2,838 3,915
— Depreciation of investment —REMEIRE (Kt 16)
properties (Note 16) 377 298
— Impairment loss on financial —SMEEZRERE
assets (Note 21, 22) (Kraz21 -~ 22) 354 2,454
— Losses on disposal of property, ~ —HEWE  BE NEE
plant and equipment (Note 10) BB (et 10) 109 8
— Net gains on disposal of —NEFRAEEEDN
right-of-use assets (Note 10) U z5 558 (K7at 10) (32) (6)
— Fair value gains on wealth —ERRITEITZEM
management products issued EmZ R TE
by commercial banks U 25 (195) (265)
— Fixed income from wealth — B Em BFEKE
management products (382) (196)
— Finance costs (Note 11) —BARERAR (BaE11) 1,522 200
— Net exchange differences — [ N =R FRE (12,675) (5,994)
Changes in working capital: LEECEE)
— Inventories -8 23,578 (34,174)
— Trade receivables — & S FIE 25,651 (68,359)
— Prepayments, deposits and other —TBHFUA  Z& &
receivables and restricted cash E h fE W IR
RZR IR (4,165) (16,819)
— Financial assets and liabilities at ~ —1&Z A F{EF AR Z
fair value through profit or loss TREENREE 4,972 2,596
— Contract liabilities —AHaE 1,264 1,136
— Trade and other payables — 85 R H A e FRIE 6,158 19,727
Cash generated from/(used in) KEmB/ (A28 e
operations 117,381 (29,815)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R M ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 32 RERER @
(b) In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of (b) RBEeRERRN HEVE K
property, plant and equipment comprise: B RFE 2 MEHRIERRE

(0)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Net book amount (Note 15) REFE (K75 15) 1,326 8
Losses on disposal of property, HEME HELREBEE
plant and equipment (Note 70) B (Htzt10) (109) (8)
1,217 -
Net debt reconciliation () BEBYER
Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
HEAE EE Met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBT T ARETT
Net debt as at R2021FE1818
1 January 2021 ZEEE (5,935) - (5,935)
New leases iRtk (315) - (315)
Disposal HE 110 - 110
Cash flows Reng 3,355 (80,000) (76,645)
Net debt as at M2021E12831H
31 December 2021 ZEEE (2,785) (80,000) (82,785)
Net debt as at M2022%1R1H
1 January 2022 ZEEE (2,785) (80,000) (82,785)
New leases ;AL (592) = (592)
Disposal HE 295 - 295
Cash flows Reng 2,881 (55,000) (52,119)

Net debt as at
31 December 2022

7H2022% 128318
ZREE (201) (135,000) (135,201)

W= AR A —s-—gEgH |5/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B RN E |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

33 COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain shopping mall counters under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements within 1 year
contract periods. Majority of the lease agreements are signed
with related parties at market price.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under these
short-term non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

33 AHBIE

(a) %%*ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%—{’ﬁ%ﬁdﬂ

AEERE A HEHEEEHEOM

BETRE AHHBR—FA-
RESHEODEFG T EHERE -

ZERR A RELEHEONR
KEEHEENFTARDT -

As at 31 December

R12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Within one year 1 AR 2,355 1,177

(b) Capital commitments

Significant capital expenditure contracted for as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 but not recognised as liabilities is
as follows:

(b) B REFH
R2022F K2021 512 A31H 2
BRI ERERABENERE
ARELZWOT :

As at 31 December

R12A318
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Property, plant and equipment W - BB &K 21 718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e

Bt 3% R 3k MY 5E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Names and relationship with related
parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operation decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties in
the ordinary course of business during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, and balances arising from related
party transactions as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

34 EEE

(a)

R5

BARE T BRI ERRA R 5 Y
ZREA

M-S ARENEEIEERIES S
—HEEE - FEEHFBHME
DRRTEEERTZEN A&
TR BB - 0 5 3
R 2 B R ) - A& 75 IR A2
BAE Y ©

LA BEE 20224 % 2021412
A31HIEFEAREEHEEBEE S
R—BEBBRAETHNERR
SEE - AR 20225 20214
NRANEMNEBR AR IEENLE

Name of related parties

BB S B

£ o

Nature of relationship

REME

Mr. Jin Jianxin
TREMTE
Shaoxing Shi Jingming
AR R
Ningbo Internet Trading Culture Development
Co., Limited
ERBEEEER UL ERERAA
Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural Development Co., Limited
ERBETX(CERBRAA
Ningbo Kwung’s Investment Holdings Co., Limited

BRBEHREZERBERAQA

Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

SRR IR

Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
REERACR 2 2 B g

Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

B PEIR AR R Pl 2 B B

Entlty controlled by Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
BASPEIR AR R P 2 B 88

Entity controlled by Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

BRRTEIRRER S 2 B

WU ERERAT —B-—FFRH

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34 BEE SR Z @0

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) BRFEE F I B

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBEF T
Payment on behalf of related parties 1t BFE; 4914 3¢
—Ningbo Internet Trading Culture  — 2t & B (b
Development Co., Limited BERARA A 144 125
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural —ERERETXER
Development Co., Limited BRAR - 1,834
144 1,959
Expenses paid by a related party on  BiE; 5 (U A E B2 T2 5E
behalf of the Group
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural —ERETXER
Development Co., Limited BRAR 1,093 -
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming — 4R ER T =8 93 698
1,186 698
Lease payment to a related party A —H B 1 EH A
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural —ERETXER
Development Co., Limited AR A7 3,811 1,968
— Ningbo Kwung’s Investment —EREH IR E TR
Holdings Co., Limited BRAA 361 -
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming — (R ER T = 266 1,336
4,438 3,304
Lease compensation received from B —%& BT IR &
a related party w#E
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming® — TSR 780 -
Labour costs paid to a related party — [f] — % BT T 114 B)
AR
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming — 4R E T =8 550 2,550
(i)  During the current year, Shaoxing Jingming entered a lease termination () REFE BESABERBETREIZ
contract with Shaoxing Keyuan with a compensation fee of HERIEEH BEBAAARKE
RMB780,000. 780,0007C ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management.
Other than those for directors as disclosed in Note 35, no
compensations were paid or payable to senior management
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(d) Balances with related parties

34 AR S m
(c) FAREIE A B L
BEEBRABEREEERERE
EE o BRETFEISHBENE FIH
HE2022%F & 2021F12A31H

EFEYEENHENSRE R
JEHY BN o

(d) EREARE 5 RV AR B

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Amounts due from related parties — fEY BG4 B
- Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural —EREBET bR
Development Co., Limited BRAF 416 -
- Ningbo Kwung’s Investment — EORIE IR B AR
Holdings Co., Limited BIRAA 46 -
- Ningbo Internet Trading Culture — — %)% B8t 49 Z B S0 /b
Development Co., Limited BREARAA - 95
— Shaoxing Shi Jingming —fAHE T = - 50
462 145

WERERAT —T--FFH 0/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BRRKE |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34 EABEG X 5 i

(d) Balances with related parties (Continued) (d) EEREAEEF MR )
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, FEUWEAR:E 7 R R EIEE R R
interest-free, repayable on demand. RIEEREE -

As at 31 December

R12831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T

Amounts due to related parties FE1T B 7 5008

—Ningbo Jingyuan Cultural —EREBET XL R
Development Company BRRA]
Limited

- 2,091
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z£2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

As of the date of issue of these financial statements, the directors
of the Company are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. Jin Jianxin

Mr. Ru Liming (resigned on 4 August 2021)
Mr. Tian Dong

Non-executive directors
Mr. Patrick Shao

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Zhou Kai

Mrs. Xu Qiong (appointed on 19 April 2022)
Mr. Yang Herong (resigned on 19 April 2022)
Mr. Lai Chun Yu

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
their role as senior management and employee before their
appointment as directors respectively) for the year ended 31
December 2022 as follows:

Name .3
Fees
B
RMB’000
ARETR
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Jin Jianxin ENRE =
Mr. Tian Dong BERAE -
Non-executive directors ~ F#HTES
Mr. Shao Patrick BFEE -
Independent non-executive B FHTEES
directors
Mr. Zhou Kai Akt 80
Mrs. Xu Qiong RERt 56
Mr. Lai Chun Yu PRFERE 158
294

Salaries

e
RMB'000
ART T

REMRZEUBHREAE AQFE
==/ N

HITES

SEFLE

ZIERAR S A (FA20214E8 A4 A BHT)
mEEA

FHTES
ABF e

BIAKHTES

EE

BB+ (R2022F4 198 EET)
BN A (FA2022F 4 A 19 A T)
RIRF 4

HE2022F12A31HILFE &
EEAEBEATIRENAEIS (FEHE
EXEAEZEZ2ANDRASKRERE

ENXEESHG)WT :
Housing
allowances
and
contributions
to a retirement
Bonus scheme Total
ERHER
B BAGEER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  AR%ETR ARETR
- = 80
- = 56
- = 158
- = 294
WU ERERAT —B-—FFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 3 EENRERERE @
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EEM £ @
The directors received emoluments from the Group (in HE2021F12A31HILEFE &
their role as senior management and employee before their FEAREEMBIRHENE (EHE
appointment as directors respectively) for the year ended 31 ZAREFZADANSRER
December 2021 as follows: ERESSM BT :
Housing
allowances
and
contributions
to a retirement
Name #e Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
TR R \
ik e AL RIRGTEIER b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT  ARETT  ARMTRT  ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors BTEE

Mr. Jin Jianxin PRIEE - - - - -

Mr. Tian Dong HESH:S - 216 - - 216

Mr. Ru Liming mRAEE - - - - -

Non-executive directors ~ FHTESE

Mr. Shao Patrick BEssE - 80 - - 80

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Mr. Zhou Kai A& 80 - - - 80

Mr. Yang Herong BRREE 80 - - - 80

Mr. Lai Chun Yu REFRE 149 - - - 149
309 296 - - 605

(b) Retirement benefits of directors (b) EEHENKER

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, B £20225 k202112 A31H

there were no additional retirement benefits received by the IEFE - BRIBEAH R B R GEF

directors except for the contribution to a retirement benefit B3R KB M ET Bl AN - B

scheme in accordance with the rules and regulations in the RIEBFBINYRIKBAH] ©

PRC.

(c) Termination benefits of directors (c) EENEBER
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there B ZE2022F K2021F12 A31H
were no termination benefits received by the directors. IEFE EFTRESBHBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR MR (|

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

(Continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties

(e)

()

for making available the services of
directors

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
consideration was paid for making available the services of
the directors or senior management of the Company.

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
bodies corporate controlled by and
entities connected with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into
by the Company or subsidiaries of the Company, where
applicable, in favour of directors.

Director’s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Except for mentioned above and those disclosed elsewhere
in Note 35, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or subsidiaries of the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had interests, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2022 and
2021 or at any time during the years then ended.

35 EEMR R RER@®

d) RESEERBEAE=S

Rt ZRERD A

RENRE

HE2022%F K2021F12 A31H
FEFE BEINRENESE
NEIEBLRREREHRE -

LEE - - ZRWESME
HHEABREEESEH
ENEEBAZBRANE

M BUERREMRS

K HEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
mEMBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 B ILFE

36 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 36 AN T B R AR R & 5k 1 2
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )

(a) &1 B BF B AR R 3R

(a) The Company’s statements of financial
position
As at 31 December 2022 2022512831 H

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 20214

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

it ARET T ARETF T
Assets BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E KM B QA a 163,681 163,681
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Uk B A 7 zk I8 b 42,274 64,572
Prepayments and other T8 A< FRIE B E A E YRR I8

receivables 328 193

Cash and cash equivalents ReReEEY 38,524 20,819
Total current assets MENEERLE 81,126 85,584
Total assets EEH#E 244,807 249,265
Equity Em
Share capital f& A< 26 359 359
Share premium & 1 4 (B 26 249,653 249,653
Accumulated losses EETiEE b (19,960) (22,554)
Total equity ERAE 230,052 227,458
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAST B B A B F0E 14,467 20,769
Accruals and other payables JERT & A M E A FE FRE 288 1,038
Total liabilities BEHE 14,755 21,807
Total equity and liabilities B aEH8EE 244,807 249,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B RS R OR MR (m)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E E 2022F 12 A31 HILFE

36 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 36 24 B) B #5 AR R K 4
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) B @
(b) Notes to the Company’s statement of (b) 2 B) Bt #& AR R 2= B &
financial position
Note a:  Investment in a subsidiary represents the investment in Kwung’s Hieta: RIWEBRRAKREEREHIRE
investments. WA -
Note b:  Amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 represented HiaFb - $R2022F 12 A31H » U E
the intercompany borrowings. RAIFBEEEWRARIBEE -
Note c:  Movements of accumulated losses. Miatc: RETEBZZE -

Accumulated losses

B2iER

RMB’000

AR®T T

Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 81 AW (22,554)
Comprehensive loss 2HEER

Profit for the year F R A 2,594

Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31BNES (19,960)

Accumulated losses

25518

RMB’000

AREBFT

Balance at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 B 1 AW (20,032)
Comprehensive loss 2HEER

Loss for the year FRNEE (2,522)

Balance at 31 December 2021 A2021FE12 831 BNES (22,554)

37.EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 37. SEG@EXHKEE

On 19 January 2023, the board announced that Anhui Fenyuan, 2023F 18198  EEE QM K
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into NRAIZHBEZ2EWNB AR RRS &
a construction agreement with the contractor, pursuant to which AR SRR B AERK
the contractor will undertake the design and construction works R i TR A EE SR b 2 BR AT MR E
of production facilities of Fenyuan factory. T
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

> NN
BHEERBE
Year ended 31 December
BZNANBLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20204 2019% 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Revenue LON 718,675 631,395 472,179 501,131 444,704
Gross profit £ 134,395 121,126 108,149 133,679 107,029
Operating profit s 57,896 56,315 47,563 32,963 88,831
Profit before income tax BRETEH AR 56,374 56,115 48,062 32,568 88,808
Income tax expense FERAX (3.736) (7,077) (7,306) (4,758) (11,757)
Total comprehensive income for the year, AR AIEEAEEFERZ
attributable to owners of the Company AlzEE 52,704 48,998 40,795 27,827 77,059
Earnings per share for profits attributable to AN &) A A F
owners of the Company MEREH
(expressed in RMB per share) (RERARBERTR)
— Basic and diluted —HALEE 130cents 2 12.1cents?  102cents  93cents?  25.7 cents
As at 31 December
W12A318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 20214 20204 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETT AREFT ARET:R
Non-current assets ERBEE 102,080 68,499 68,763 71,545 48,240
Current assets RBEE 560,268 477,989 327,350 203,000 362,478
Total assets BELE 662,348 546,488 396,113 274,545 410,718
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = 241 2176 5,671 3,546
Current liabilities RBEE 234,808 171,467 68,193 70,154 236,271
Total liabilities BEAT 234,808 171,708 70,369 75,825 239,817
Total equity BnE 421,540 374,780 325,744 198,720 170,901
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KWUNG’S HOLDINGS LIMITED

EBNELTELIVEE 84 RIRIESR 11121102 F
Unit 1102, 11th Floor, Brill Plaza, No. 84 To Kwa Wan Road
To Kwa Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

T & Tel:+852 3110 1839
fﬂ 3k URL: http://www.kwungs.com
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